Sam



THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION



William Cass, P.E. Assistant Commissioner

Bureau of Turnpikes March 11, 2022

Victoria F. Sheehan Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu and the Honorable Council State House Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into a Contract with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., Germantown, MD, Vendor #174856, in the amount of \$12,588,927.88, for design, testing, installation and maintenance services for the Toll Collection System (TCS) for the Bureau of Turnpikes, effective upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2027, with an option to renew, at the sole discretion of the State, for up to three, 3-year optional maintenance periods up to, but not beyond June 30, 2036, subject to Governor and Council approval. 100% Turnpike Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State FY 2022 and FY 2023 and is contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in FY 2024, FY 2025, FY 2026 and FY 2027, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years if needed and justified:

	FY 2022	FY 2023	FY 2024	FY 2025	FY 2026	FY 2027
04-096-096-961017-7050 Toll Collection 024-500225 Maintenance Other than Buildings/Grounds	\$200,000.00	\$1,375,520.00	\$1,459,749.19	\$1,515,691.51	\$1,439,253.63	\$1,268,227.90
04-096-096-961017-7050 Toll Collection 037-500166 Technology-Hardware	\$1,804,378.00	\$271,846.16	\$506,396.14			
04-096-096-961017-7050 Toll Collection 038-509038 Technology-Software		\$1,114,071.50	\$101,279.23			
04-096-096-9610017-7050 Toll Collection 046-500463 Eng. Consultants Non-Benefit	\$557,035.75	\$658,314.97	\$317,163.90			
Fiscal Year Totals	\$2,561,413.75	\$3,419,752.63	\$2,384,588.46	\$1,515,691.51	\$1,439,253.63	\$1,268,227.90

EXPLANATION

The above referenced contract involves engaging Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. under a 5-year contract to perform the design, testing, installation, and maintenance services for the Toll Collection System (TCS) for the Bureau of Turnpikes. This request specifically addresses the procurement of the TCS system and the related maintenance services under a Request for Proposals (RFP 2019-085).

The initial portion of the contract involves the design, testing and installation of an enhanced TCS system with new software and the replacement of select hardware components, while maximizing the use of existing viable equipment. The TCS system will specifically support revenue collection and violation enforcement for all toll lanes system-wide, except the Open Road Tolling (ORT) lanes at the Hampton and Hooksett and the All-Electronic Tolling (AET) Lanes in Dover and Rochester (to be operational by December 2022) Toll Facilities. Bedford Toll Plaza will be removed from the TCS maintenance after FY 2025 because the Plaza is being converted to an AET facility. The TCS will interface with the current customer service and violation processing center already operated by Cubic Transportation Systems under an existing, separate contract.

In addition to the deployment of the enhanced TCS system, the second portion of the contract includes maintenance for the TCS system. The scope of maintenance work covers all preventative, predictive and corrective maintenance required to support the enhanced TCS system.

On March 1, 2021, the Department publicly advertised the RFP. During the response period, the Department conducted a Vendor Conference for all vendors who responded with intent to submit and entertained questions and/or inquiries from the Vendors. Proposals were received from the following vendors in accordance with the requirements for submission, including the stipulated deadline of June 23, 2021:

VENDOR NAME

- Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.
- A-To-Be

Proposals from each vendor were reviewed by the TCS RFP Selection Committee along with technical review support by the Bureau of Turnpikes' tolling consultant, Jacobs Engineering. On July 21, 2021, and August 16, 2021, the Selection Committee held interviews with the vendor teams, where each team conducted a presentation describing their team, capabilities, and pertinent aspects of their proposal; provided answers to a specific set of questions targeting each proposal; and participated in an open question and answer period. The Selection Committee is comprised of the Bureau of Turnpikes' Assistant Administrator, Toll Manager, E-ZPass Program Manager, and Audit Supervisor, as well as DoIT Manager.

Following the interviews on August 16, 2021, the Selection Committee met to discuss the Vendor Interviews and finalize the ratings of the Proposals. The Selection Committee used the table below to rate the technical aspect of each proposal considering the TCS system design and technical approach; ability to execute and meet the project schedule; system maintenance and warranty approach; and firm's qualifications, project team, capabilities, and references. The technical aspect accounted for 700 of the

total 1,000 maximum points. A minimum of 490 points was required, as specified in the RFP, for further consideration in the overall selection process. Proposals not receiving a technical score of 490 points or higher, in addition to being removed from further consideration, remain unopened and will be returned to the vendor upon Governor and Council approval of the Contract.

CATEGORIES	POINTS
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL with the following potential maximum scores for each Technical Proposal category;	700
Toll System Design and Technical Approach (30%)	210
Ability to Execute and Meet the Project Schedule (30%)	210
System Maintenance and Warranty Approach (20%)	140
Firms Qualifications, Project Team, Capabilities and References (20%)	140
PRICE PROPOSAL POTENTIAL MAXIMUM POINTS	700
TOTAL POTENTIAL MAXIMUM POINTS AWARDED	100

Based on the above-mentioned analysis, the Selection Committee identified one (1) vendor with technical scores exceeding and worthy of consideration in the selection process. A-to-Be did not achieve the minimum technical score. As such, based on the requirements in the RFP (RFP 2019-085, Section 5.1), the proposal submission was disqualified from further consideration. As a result, the corresponding price proposal is unopened and will be returned to the vendor upon Governor and Council approval of the Contract.

The following table outlines the Committee's technical scoring, each firm's base price proposal, corresponding price score and total score.

Vendor	Technical Score (max. 700 points)	Price Proposal Based Price	Price Score (max. 300 points)	Total Score
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.	658	\$9,127,118.00	300	958
A-to-Be	414			

Based on the scoring above, the Department requests approval to enter into a contract with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for a 5-year agreement ending on June 30, 2027, with the option, at the sole discretion of the State, to extend for up to three 3-year optional maintenance periods, but not beyond June 30, 2036.

On September 17, 2021, the Department sent a Best and Final Offer (BAFO) request to Conduent State and Local Solutions, Inc. with new a contract price of \$12,588,927.88, an increase of approximately \$3,461,809. The following are major changes as result of the BAFO:

- Fiscal Year 2023 maintenance cost of existing system included in this contract instead of renewing existing contract which ends June 30, 2022 as a sole source extension of Conduent's existing Contract. **Increase:** \$1,576,000
- Contract Term adjusted to align with the State Fiscal Years which added on the months of December 2026 through June 30, 2027. **Increase: \$550,000**
- Merrimack Industrial Toll Plaza cost to be removed from the price proposal as the Plaza was closed on January 1, 2022. **Decrease: \$420,300**
- Added the O&M cost to maintain the Bedford Toll Plaza in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 because
 of the delay in AET implementation. RFP original estimate only included FY 23 maintenance.

Increase: \$650,000

- Updated the Contract's Toll Hardware Table to include the replacement of the Lane Controllers in year one of the Contract. The Lane Controller is the operating system for each lane and is a critical replacement due to the age of the existing equipment. **Increase:** \$473,000
- The overall price also includes a Maintenance contingency for each Fiscal year for O&M. **Increase:** \$330,000 (FY 2023 \$70,000, FY 2024 \$50,000, FY 2025 \$80,000, FY 2026 \$50,000 and FY 2027 \$80,000). This money is required for unanticipated repairs and/or replacements of damaged items from motor vehicle accidents and unforeseen maintenance repairs or weather events (i.e. lightning strikes can cost up to \$45,000.00 per event). Maintenance contingency is not part of the RFP process. The cost is estimated by the Department based on past years' expenditures.

The contract has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. Copies of the fully executed contract are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services' Office; and subsequent to Governor and Council approval, will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

It is respectfully requested that this resolution be approved.

Sincerely,

Victoria F. Sheehan

Commissioner

Attachments

cc: J. Corcoran, R. Dupuis

1777.5 T

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301 Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet *Commissioner*

March 15, 2022

Victoria F. Sheehan, Commissioner Department of Transportation State of New Hampshire 7 Hazen Drive Concord, NH 03302

Dear Commissioner Sheehan:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT) has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with Conduent State and Local Solutions, Inc., Newark, NJ as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2019-085.

The Department of Transportation (NHDOT) requests approval to enter into a contract with Conduent State and Local Solutions, Inc. to provide a new Conventional Cash/E-ZPass Toll Collection System (TCS) through an upgrade process by utilizing existing hardware where practical, replacing the TCS Software, and securing ongoing maintenance services.

The cost of the contract is not to exceed \$12,588,927.88 and it shall become effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2027.

A copy of this letter should accompany your Agency's submission to Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/RA DoIT #2019-085

CC: Charles Burns, IT Lead



Department of Transportation: Toll Collection System: NHDOT - RFP 2019-085

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Co	ontents	
EX	THIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS	1
	HIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW) BUSINESS AND TECHNICAL QUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES	18
1.	STATEMENT OF WORK	18
2.	BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	19
3.	ACTIVITY, DELIVERABLE, AND MILESTONE	20
4.	DELIVERABLE REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE	27
5.	CHANGE ORDER	30
6.	IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES	31
7.	PROJECT MANAGEMENT	31
8.	PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN	32
9.	ACCEPTANCE & TESTING SERVICES	32
10.		
11.	DATA PROTECTION	36
12.	SOFTWARE AGREEMENT	39
13.		
14.	TRAINING	39
15.	TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	40
16.	CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATES	40
EXI	HIBIT C – PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE	4
1.	CONTRACT PRICE	4
2.	TRAVEL EXPENSES	
3.	SHIPPING FEES	4
4.	INVOICING	4
5.	INVOICE ADDRESS	
6.	PAYMENT ADDRESS	
7.	OVERPAYMENTS TO CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC	42
8	CREDITS	4

Page 2 of 73 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

TABLE OF CONTENTS

9.	CONTRACT EXTENSION COSTS	42
10.	PROJECT HOLDBACK	42
11.	PAYMENT SCHEDULE	42
EX	HIBIT D – SOFTWARE AGREEMENT	50
1.	LICENSE GRANT	50
2.	SOFTWARE TITLE	50
3.	SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTATION COPIES	51
4.	RESTRICTIONS	51
5.	VIRUSES	52
6.	AUDIT	52
7.	SOFTWARE NON-INFRINGEMENT	52
8.	CONTROL OF ALL COMPONENT ELEMENTS	53
9.	CUSTOM SOURCE CODE	53
10.	SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT	53
11.	MAINTENANCE RELEASES	54
12.	SOFTWARE ESCROW	54
EXI	HIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES	55
1.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	55
2.	ACCESS AND COOPERATION	55
3.	RECORD RETENTION	56
4.	ACCOUNTING	56
5.	AUDIT	56
6.	MISCELLANEOUS WORK REQUIREMENTS	56
EXI	HIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	59
	HIBIT G – ATTACHMENTS AND CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC.	73
1.	ATTACHMENTS	73
2.	CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC. CERTIFICATES	73

Page 3 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3 5 22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes 2019-085 - Toll Collection System

TABLE OF CONTENTS

This page intentionally left blank

Page 4 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 5D

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 – Toll Collection System STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION 1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address 7 Hazen Drive, Concord, NH 03302-0483 Department of Transportation-Bureau of Turnpikes 1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address 375 McCarter Highway, Newark NJ 07114 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. 1.8 Price Limitation 1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 7050-024,037, Number \$12,588,927.88 June 30, 2027 038,046 202-906-8321 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number Victoria Sheenan, Commissioner 603-271-1468 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 1.11 Contractor Signature Scott Doering, Vice President and General Manager Date: 3-5-22 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory Date: Victoria Sheehan, Commissioner 3-15-22 1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable) Director, On: By: Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) 1.16 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable) 1.17 G&C Meeting Date: G&C Item number:

Page 5 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3-5-22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform, and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 17, unless no such approval is required, in which case are Agreement shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").

3.2 If Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. commences the Services prior to the Effective Date, all Services performed by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. prior to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the State shall have no liability to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., including without limitation, any obligation to pay Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for any costs incurred or Services performed. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds -ffected by any state or federal legislative or executive

action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon giving Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. notice of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in the performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for the Services. The State shall have no liability to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. other than the contract price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise payable to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. under this Agreement those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.

Page 6 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the United States, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to implement these regulations. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall also comply with all applicable intellectual property laws. 6.2 During the term of this Agreement, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to prevent ch discrimination.

...3. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. agrees to permit the State or United States access to any of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. books, records and accounts for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall at its own expense provide all personnel necessary to perform the Services. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the Completion Date in block 1.7, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not hire, and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee or official, who is materially involved in the procurement, administration or performance of this Agreement. This rovision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

- 8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event of Default"):
- 8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
- 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this Agreement.
- 8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
- 8.2.1 give Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. notice of termination;
- 8.2.2 give Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which would otherwise accrue to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.;
- 8.2.3 give Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. a written notice specifying the Event of Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. any damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and/or
- 8,2,4 give Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. a written notice specifying the Event of Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

Page 7 of 73 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50
Date: 3 5 22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default on the part of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the Services, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later than fteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (Termination Report") describing in detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose nder this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE.

In the performance of this Agreement Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is in all respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of the State. Neither Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. nor any of its officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger, consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. without prior written notice and consent of the State. The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright

Page 8 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3 122



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., or subcontractors, including but not limited to the negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not be liable for any costs incurred by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. arising under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

- 14.1 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance:
- 14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all 'aims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in ...mounts of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate or excess; and
- 14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
- 14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
- 14.3 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. agrees, certifies and warrants that Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is in compliance with or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers' Compensation").

15.2 To the extent Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is subject to the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. or any subcontractor or employee of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the Services under this Agreement.

- 16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.
- 17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.
- 18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and assigns. The wording used in this

Page 9 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GENERAL PROVISIONS - P37

Agreement is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party. Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

- 19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.
- 20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
- 21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for reference purposes only, and the words contained erein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify

or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

- 22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated herein by reference.
- 23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.
- 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Page 10 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The terms outlined in the P-37 General Provisions are modified as set forth below:

Provision 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is updated with the following A.1 addition:

3.3 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall be fully prepared to commence work after full execution of the Contract by all parties, and the receipt of required governmental approvals, including, but not limited to, Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire approval of the contract ("Effective Date").

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. initial term shall begin on the Effective Date and extend for a period of five (5) years. The earliest warranty may start is the beginning of Phase II. The contract term may be extended by three (3) additional three (3) year terms ("Extended Term") at the sole option of the State, subject to the parties' prior written agreement on applicable fees for each extended term but not beyond June 30, 2027 under the same terms and conditions, subject to approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall commence work upon issuance of a Notice to Proceed (NTP) by the State.

The State does not require Conduent State & Local Solutions to commence work prior to the Effective Date; however, if Conduent State & Local Solutions commences work prior to the Effective Date and a Notice to Proceed, such work shall be performed at the sole risk of Conduent State & Local Solutions. In the Event that the Contract does not become effective, the State shall be under no obligation to pay Conduent State & Local Solutions for any costs incurred or Services performed; however, if the Contract becomes effective, all costs incurred prior to the Effective Date shall be paid under the terms of the Contract.

Provision 5, Contract Price/Price Limitation/ Payment, is updated with the following A.2 addition:

The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to monetary damages not 5.5 to exceed the contract price pursuant to Paragraph 5.2. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific performance or other equitable remedies against the State. Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall the State be liable for any consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive, or exemplary damages. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.

Page 11 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

5.6 In no event shall either party be liable for any consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or exemplary damages. Conduent's liability to the State shall not exceed the contract price set forth in Agreement, Paragraph 5.2.

A.3 Provision 8, Event of Default/Remedies, is updated with the following addition:

8.2.5 Give Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. a written notice specifying the event of Default, terminate the agreement as breached, and procure Services that are the subject of the Contract from another source and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall be liable for reimbursing the State for the replacement Services, and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement of the Contract and procuring the Services from another source, such as costs of competitive bidding, mailing, advertising, applicable fees, charges or penalties, and staff time costs; all of which shall be subject to the limitations of liability set forth in the Contract.

A.4 Provision 9, Termination, is deleted and replaced with the following:

9. TERMINATION

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole discretion, and with written notice, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part. In the event of such termination, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall immediately stop all work hereunder and shall immediately cause any and all of its suppliers and subcontractors to cease work. The State shall be liable for cost of all Services and Deliverables for which Acceptance has been given by the State, provided through the date of termination but will not be liable for any costs for incomplete Services or winding down the Contract activities. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not be paid for any work performed or costs incurred which reasonably could have been avoided.

9.2 Termination Procedure

- 9.2.1 Upon termination of the Contract, the State, in addition to any other rights provided in the Contract, may require Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to deliver to the State any property, including without limitation, Software and Written Deliverables, for such part of the Contract as has been terminated.
- 9.2.2 After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the State, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall:
 - Stop work under the Contract on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice;
 - b. Promptly, but in no event longer than ten (10) days after termination, terminate its orders and subcontracts related to the work which has been terminated, and settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the State to the extent required, which approval or ratification shall be final for the purpose of this Section;

Page 12 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

- c. Take such action as the State directs, or as necessary to preserve and protect the property related to the Contract which is in the possession of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and in which the State has an interest:
- **d.** Take no action to intentionally erase any State data until directed by the State:
- e. Transfer title to the State and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the State, any property which is required to be furnished to the State and which has been accepted or requested by the State;
- f. Implement an orderly return of State data in a CSV or another mutually agreeable format at a time agreed to by the parties;
- g. Securely dispose of all requested data in all of its forms, such as disk, CD/DVD, backup tape and paper, when requested by the State. Data shall be permanently deleted and shall not be recoverable, according to National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)-Special Publication (SP) 800-88 approved methods. Certificates of destruction shall be provided to the State; and
- h. Provide written Certification to the State that Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. has surrendered to the State all said property and after 180 days has erased all State data.
- 9.2.3 If the Contract has expired, or terminated prior to the Completion Date, for any reason, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide, for a period up to ninety (90) days after the expiration or termination, all transition services requested by the State, at no additional cost, to allow for the expired or terminated portion of the Services to continue without interruption or adverse effect, and to facilitate the orderly transfer of such Services to the State or its designees ("Transition Services").
- **9.2.4** This covenant in paragraph 9 shall survive the termination of this Contract.

A.5 Provision 10, Data/Access/Confidentiality/Preservation, is updated with the following addition:

10.4 In performing its obligations under this Agreement, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may gain access to Confidential Information of the State. Confidential Information includes any and all information owned or managed by the State of NH created, received from or on behalf of any Agency of the State or accessed in the course of performing contracted Services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (PII), Personal Financial Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and Confidential Information. Conduent State & Local Solutions,

Page 13 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A – SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Inc. shall not use the Confidential Information developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired, or developed by reason of the Agreement, except as directly connected to and necessary for the performance of the Agreement. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall maintain the confidentiality of and protect from unauthorized use, disclosure, publication, and reproduction (collectively "release"), all Confidential Information.

- 10.4.1 In the event of the unauthorized release of Confidential Information, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall immediately notify the State's Information Security Officer, and the State may immediately be entitled to pursue any remedy at law and in equity, including, but not limited to, injunctive relief.
- 10.5 Subject to applicable federal or State laws and regulations, Confidential Information shall not include information which:
 - a. shall have otherwise become publicly available other than as a result of disclosure by the receiving Party in breach hereof;
 - b. was disclosed to the receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the disclosing Party, which the receiving Party believes is not prohibited from disclosing such information as a result of an obligation in favor of the disclosing Party;
 - is developed by the receiving Party independently of, or was known by the receiving Party prior to, any disclosure of such information made by the disclosing Party; or
 - d. is disclosed with the written consent of the disclosing Party.
- 10.6 A receiving Party also may disclose the disclosing Party's Confidential Information to the extent required by an order of a court of competent jurisdiction. Any disclosure of the Confidential Information shall require the prior written approval of the State. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall immediately notify the State if any request, subpoena or other legal process is served upon Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. regarding the Confidential Information, and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall cooperate with the State in any effort the State undertakes to contest the request, subpoena or other legal process, at no additional cost to the State.
- Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Confidential Information. Conduent State & 10.7 Local Solutions, Inc. shall clearly identify in writing all information it claims to be confidential or proprietary upon providing such information to the State. For the purposes of complying with its legal obligations, the State is under no obligation to accept Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. designation of material as confidential. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. acknowledges that the State is subject to State and federal laws governing disclosure of information including, but not limited to, RSA Chapter 91-A. In the event the State receives a request for the information identified by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. as confidential, the State shall notify Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and specify the date the State will be releasing the requested information. At the request of the State, Conduent State &

Page 14 of 73 Conducty State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Local Solutions, Inc. shall cooperate and assist the State with the collection and review of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. information, at no additional expense to the State. Any effort to prohibit or enjoin the release of the information shall be Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. sole responsibility and at Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. sole expense. If Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. fails to obtain a court order enjoining the disclosure, the State shall release the information on the date specified in the State's notice to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., without any liability to the State.

10.8 This covenant in paragraph 10 shall survive the termination of this Contract.

A.6 Provision 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is updated with the following addition:

- 12.3 In the event that Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. should change ownership for any reason whatsoever that results in a change of control of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., the State shall have the option of:
 - a. continuing under the Agreement with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., its successors or assigns for the full remaining Term of the Agreement or for such period of time as determined necessary by the State;
 - **b.** immediately terminate the Agreement without liability to or further compensation owed to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., its successors or assigns.

A.7 Replace Provision 13 INDEMNIFICATION of General Provision P37 with the following language:

Unless otherwise exempted by law, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) breach of contract, willful misconduct, or negligent acts or omission of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., or subcontractors, including but not limited to the negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not be liable for any costs incurred by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. arising under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

A.8 The following Provisions are added and made part of the P37:

25. FORCE MAJEURE

25.1 Neither Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. nor the State shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from events beyond the control of such Party and without fault or negligence of such Party. Such events shall include, but not

Page 15 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT A - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

be limited to, acts of God, strikes, lock outs, riots, and acts of War, epidemics, acts of Government, fire, power failures, nuclear accidents, earthquakes, and unusually severe weather.

25.2 Except in the event of the foregoing, Force Majeure events shall not include Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. inability to hire or provide personnel needed for Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. performance under the Contract.

26. EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS

The Exhibits and Attachments referred to in and attached to the Contract are incorporated by reference as if fully included in the text of the Contract.

27. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

The State reserves the right, at its discretion, to retain other vendors to provide any of the Services or Deliverables identified under this Agreement. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall make best efforts to coordinate work with all other State vendors performing Services which relate to the work or Deliverables set forth in the Agreement. The State intends to use, whenever possible, existing Software and hardware contracts to acquire supporting Software and hardware.

28. GOVERNMENT APPROVALS

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall obtain all necessary and applicable regulatory or other governmental approvals necessary to perform its obligations under the Contract.

29. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of conflict or ambiguity among any of the text within this agreement, the following Order of Precedence shall govern:

- State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation Contract Agreement 2019-085.
- ii. Final State Responses to Vendor Inquires to RFP 2019-085.
- iii. RFP 2019-085 Toll Collection System dated with related attachments, appendices, and Addendum #1 and Addendum #2.
- iv. Vendor Proposal Response to Department of Transportation 2019-085 Toll Collection System dated June 23, 2021
- Vendor Interview Presentation material and responses to State's questions to RFP 2019-085.

Page 16 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes 2019-085 – Toll Collection System EXHIBIT A – SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 17 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW) BUSINESS AND TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

The Statement of Work, Business and Technical Requirements, and Deliverables are set forth below:

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

The purpose of this project is to acquire a new Conventional Cash/E-ZPass Toll Collection System (TCS) through an upgrade process by utilizing existing hardware where practical, replacing the TCS Software, and securing ongoing maintenance services. To fulfill these intentions, the following project goals have been established:

Goal 1: Acquire a new TCS with a primary focus on replacing the legacy system software and hardware over the initial five (5) year term while reusing existing lane system hardware.

Goal 2: Obtain on-going TCS maintenance services for the upgraded TCS software and hardware to maintain the required system KPIs.

Page 18 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

2. BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

Section #	Conformance with RFP 1019-085 Requirements	C.	орКа	ece '	For	aistin ctiona	s No	Cual	Green	hillity "	Contractor Commonts
		V	18	T	1	W	В	U	6	F	
i	PROJECT OVERVIEW		4								
1	Project Goals	2		Ι	X				X		
	DEFINITION & UNDERSTANDING OF THE TERM CONFIGURABLE				1000						
	PHASE I - TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM UPGRADE REQUIREMENTS		1000				m	1000			
1	Stope of Wark	Z		T		X				X.	
3.2	System Overview	X	-	1	X				X		
3.3	Contractor Compercation	X	-	********	X	1			X	-	
3 3 1	Phase I - Toll System Upgrade Compensation and Payment Schedule	Z	1	†	X	1			X		
3 3 2	Phase II - New TCS Maintenance Compensation	X		1	X				X		
3.4	Conspliance Matrix	N.	1		X	1	9.00000		X		
3 5	Use of Existing Equipment	-		X	1	X			1	X	
1.6	Lane Functional Requirements								im		
41	Line Medes	X	_		X			X	1		
162	Lane Functionality	100	BROWN	1					İ		
621	Mapual E-ZPass Laue	X	7	1	N	-		T	X		
1633	ACM Lane	1	1	1	X	1	-	1	i		
613	Deducated E-2Pers Lane	- X		1	X	1		1	X		
163	Data Exchange	X	1	1	TX T	1	-	1	X		
15.4	E.ZPacs Dirabise	X	1	1-	X	1		-	K-	1	
65	Tunascon Freezas	X	+	1	Ŕ	1	vernin.		X		
188	Inches Developed		dana	de la constante	i i	ł	loon	hom	i	100000	REMOVED
6.7	Violation Detection	Z	7	_	X	_	_	T	X	_	
	Reverse Lane Mode Lock	- X	-	-	X	-	-	-	K	-	
6.8		X	-		Z.	-			1X		
	Automatic Vehicle Identification (AVD System Automatic Vehicle Detection and Classification (AVDC) System	- K	Summe		X	·			X	·	
3 6 10	Violation Enforcement Subsystem	-	1000		iù.	ł.	1000		li e		
3 5 11 1		X	+	-	X	-		-	X	-	
	VES Subsystem	7	+-	+-	X	+	-	-	1x	-	
3 6 11 2	VES Implementation	Z Z	-		X -	-			ÎX.		
3 6 11 3	Violation Logic	12	done	diam'r.	1	ļ.	homi	-	سننا	lane.	
111	Lane Technical Requirements	X	4	1-	X	-	-	1	+	N.	
	Luce Coursolist	X	+	-	R.	+-	-	-	-	0	
1711	Lage Controller Stars Up	X	-	-	X	1-		1-	X	-	
11.2	Transaction Processing	1		ł	Z.	-		v	12-		
<u>uu </u>	Fare Desensitions	X	-	-	12	-		3	Z.		
71.4	Fare Class	X	-	1-	Z	-			X		
013	Saxing of Integes		-	+-	N	+	-	-	X	-	
173.6	Configuration Files	X	+	-	N	\vdash	-	-		1	
1717	Interface to AVI SubSystem	X	-	1-	X	-	-		X		
3718	Interface to AVDC SubSystem	-X		-	1 <u>X</u>	-			X-		
3.7,1,9	learning to VES	X	-	+-	X	+	-	-	N	+	
3 7 1,10	Interface to TC 5 Host	X	+-	+	X	+	-	1	X	1	
3.1.11	lacerbine to MOMS	X	-	-	X	1	-	-	100	1	
7.1.12	Recessing Date		-	+		-	-	-	1-	1	
7.1.13	Transmitting Data	X		-	X	-		-	X	12-	
71.14	Monator All Laus En alphaest for Device Status		-	-	Z-	+		-	X	+	
7,1.15	Diagnostics and Equipment Mathematica	X	-	-		-	-	-	1	1-	
71.16	Stand alone Mode of Operation	X	-	-	X	-	-	-	1	1	
7.1.17	Tune Synctronization	Z	-	-	X	-	-	-	X	1	
7.1.18	Operating Systems and Software	X		-	X	-		-	-	1	
3.7.1.19	Establishin Requirements	X	1	1	Z.	1	L	1	1	17	

Page 19 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 5
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Socilan F	Casformance with RFP 2019-485 Requirements	t.	epäser	· Pos	Existing	,,,	Cueffga	nbilin	Contractor Commonsts	
		V	8	6 6	M	0	U 6	1		
3.7.2	Point of Collection Equipment									
3.7.2.1	Tell Collector Terminal	X		X	T			2		
1111	Eegerpt Frances	X		X	П			X		
3723	Canagy Override Switch	S		X	\Box		-	X		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
373	AVI Subsystem	X		X				X		
3.7.4	Vehicle Detection and Classification	7.		X				X		
3 ? 5	Attendent Kennification Display	Z		X				X		
3.7.6	Pauca Feedback Display (PFD)	X		X	TT		****	X		
3.7.7	Laise Traffic Signal	X		X				X		
173	Lage Status Lagign	X		X				N		
379	Lange Feed Back Operations	X		X			Z			ASSESSMENT
3,7.9.1	Dedicated E-ZPavi Lane									
37911	Valid For	X		X	\Box	П	X	T		
17512	Valid Non-Revenue Yag	X		X		1	X			
37913	Low Brimge Tag	N		X			18			,manuscriptorius
31314	levalid or Lost Stolen Tag	X		X			X			- Anna Carrier Contract Contra
37.815	No Tag Resi	X		X			X			AND A SHARE
37916	Class Mismatch	- 2		IX			X			
37917	Speed Violation	X		IX	1 1		X			
1793	E-ZPascMissual Lane								FUEL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF	
17621	Valid E-ZPara Tag. Class Manuscrib	2		X	T	П	X			, married and a
87.632	Valid E-ZFava Tag	Z		X			X			-
119.11	Low: Batance E-ZPass Tag	Z		1	TT	_	18			***************************************
37814	Invalid Lost Stolen E-ZPasa Tag. Carls Personn	ls.		X			X			
17035	Boyalid Core Scolen E. Z.Parx Ties. No Carle Payment	X		IX	11		X			
3 7 5 7 6	Valid E-ZPavo Lass Pattern Pavo Cath	X		X			N			-
37933	Trg Ship Read from New Vehicle	X		X			X			
81918	ES Carls	13		X			N			
3 29 29	licufficient No Funds	ls.		X			X	1		
174210	Revelid E-ZPann & No Fands	TX.		X			X			
11011	Valid F-ZPain & No Fand	X		18	1 1		X			*********
3 1.9.3.12	No engineers	X		X	T		X	1		200000000000000000000000000000000000000
37.8218	Cacadara Paper, Chacgo Due	X.		TX.	T		X		1	
379214	Canadata Paper, More Due, Paid Exactly	- Ix		X			X			NOT PER COLUMN
3 7 8 2 15	Canadam Paper, More Due, Overpaid	IX.		X			X			-
1 . 9 16	ICAN Paper, More Doe, Overpaid Com	lx.		X			X			(3) (1) (3)
1793	ACSI Galy Lane Commission Commiss	X		X			X		1	-
3.7.9.3.1	Class I Full Payment or Overpresument	X		N			X			,9990900000
12933	Class I Full Back out Case W.O.Mer Asslet	X		X	11		X			ARCHIVE STATE OF THE STATE OF T
37933	ACM Clave I Parnai Back our (Overshoot)	lx.		X			X			
37414	(See Class Victoria) (Class Victoria)	X		X			X			
1,7,9.4	Miscellanesus Cases								Control of the second of the s	
17.9.4.1	Closed Reverable Lane	X		2			X		The same of the sa	71.11
17.9.4.2	Cloted Non-severable Lane	X		X			X			
17943	Special Events	X		X			X			
3.7.10	Equipment Exclarates	2.		X			X			
1.8	Playa Functional Requirement:									
1.8.1	Mosey Bag Handing	X		X				X		
182	Random Bag Anda	X		X				X		
161	Manufest Generation	13	1	X	T	-		100		Name of Street, Street

Page 20 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section #	Conference with RFP 2019-088 Regularement	Compl	leasee t		galitets desente		Confe	urak	elliny "	Contractor Community
		8 3	1 1	2	34	b	0		T	
181	Charge Fund Measestory	X		X			5			
385	Piaza Meunoring	X		X			3			
3.5.5.1	Alama Monttonag	X	T	X			N A			
316	Remote Management (Lane open closed, etc)	X		X			7			
387	Piaza Administration Application	X		X			N			
1.9	Plaza Technical Requirements									ALC: NO PROPERTY OF THE PROPER
19.1	Wedgewas	X		X					X	
192	Printers	X		X					X	***************************************
393	Piaza TCS Servers	N		X					X	
394	Plaza VES Servers	Z		X					X.	
13 8.5	Plaza VES Server Interfacing with the CSC VPC	X		IX			3			
-3 10	Diest Functional Requirements	IX.		X			3			
-3 10.1	Interface with the E-ZPast CSC VPC	N X		X						
.3 10.2	threesfood with the ORT AET System	X	1	K		nanahn	15	-		
3 10 3	Communitations: Interface	x		X			N			
-1.10.4	File Traction	X	1	X			3			
31041	E-ZPasa Transsenies Friet	N I		7			7	-		
3 10 4 3	IE ZPart Tag Statist Files	X	_	X		*****	13			
3 10.5	Interface with the Meney Processor Vendor	X	1	X			- 1			
3 10.6	Exercises with Bank	X		X			- 1			
-3107	WAN Mentager	18	+	X	\vdash		1			
110.1	Time by achience their	X	+	X			15			
J 10.6	Canadan Lachus e Pares		-	X			1	-		
3 10 10	Back Deposit Yorkhat	- K	+	X			commercial res			(
3.10.11	Vanil Switch Anisons:	X	+	X			- K		-	
3.10.12	Version Typiciane Requirements	X	+	X			- K			
3 10 13	Revenue Dry Assignment and Verification	- X	_	X	+					
3 10 14	Data Sannesisation	- 	-	X	-					
3 10.15	Diamonics	- 12 H	+-	X			- 1			
-3 10.16	Data Security	18	+	X				-		
3 10.17	remaining Fig. Processing	- 13 T	-	18	+	-	-	•		
3 10 18	Fire Calculation	- 13 T	+	IX	-		15	-		
3 10 19	Resi-Tace Sensorus	- lî		X		ment of				
3 10 20	User Serup and Mangrenance Screen	Ŷ		X	1					
3 10 31	Upland Verification of Transaction Revords	- 13 T	-	N.	\vdash			-		
3.10.22	Download Account Status Data Toll Rate Tride and Tune Swelpourzmon	X	+	X	\vdash		- 6	-	-	
3 10 23	Audit and Recognitative	12	+	X			-			
3.11	Hart Technical Requirements		-	na chianne	i mak	200	00000		2000	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR
	Hart Technical Requirement	X .	-	77					-	
311.1	Host Server Operating System	- K	-	X	1			-	-	
3113	Hote System Database	- 	+-	X	+++		1	-		
3.11.4	Date Backing and Date Resention	 	+	X.	+				\vdash	
311.3	System Access	 	-	X	\vdash					
				Y	-		-			
+11.6	Соведуникальные Естириней			Tok.		-				
-3.12	Repairs	- K	-	X		-			-	
-3 12 1	peneras and Report Access	- X	_	X	-	111111			\vdash	
	Toll Cellecture System Scients Reports	_ \		1.5	1					Working Control of the Control of th
3123	Hott Reports		-	4	1				-	
3.12.3.1	Collector Reports			1						
312311	Collector Segment of Duty (SOD) Report	N		X						

Page 21 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section #	Conformance with RFP 1019-066 Requirements	c	raplis	and a		sistia tiona		Costig	Wat I	hiiq '	Contractor Continuents
		7	1 8	TE		м	b	V	ζ.	7	
C312312	Collector Total of Duty (TOD) Report	Z	1	1	X				·	***************************************	
C-3 12 3 1 3	hunal Audit	Z			X						
C-3.12.3.2	Revenue Reports					ese.					
C-3 12 3 2.1	Daily Bank Reconciliation by Process Date	Z	7	1	Z						
C-3 12 3 2 2	Plaza Deposit Record by Bank Revenue Date	X			X		-		3		
C-3 123 23	Daily Revenue by Plaza Report	x	1		X		******		-		
C-3 123 24	Recease by Plaza Report	X	-		X				č		
C-3123.25	Dativ New Revenue Report	X			X						
C.J.12.3.2.6	Petenue Pepart	X	+		Χ						
C-112327	Bleposit by Bank Revenue Date Report	X	1	1	Z						
C-3.12.3.2.8	Deposit by Bank Deposit Date Report	- X	-	1	X						
C-3 12 3 2 9	Fig. Deport Perord by Brak Revenue Date Report	- X		1-	X	1					
C-3.12.3.3	E-ZPast Reports	ì	alem 1	CONTRACTOR	i				Ì		
C-3 12 3 3 1	E-ZPass Researce by Plaza Report	X	-	1	X		-				
C-3 12 3 3 2	E-ZPAS Retenue og Piaza Report E-ZPass Usage Report (single transponder)	N X	+	1	X			L	-		
0-3 12 3 3 3	Daily Lane Operation; Repart	X	-	-	Z	-			<u> </u>		
C-3 12 3 3 A	E-ZPast Market Share Report	- 1	-		X				-		
C-3.12.3.4		A-		-	A						
	Audit Reports		4	₩		-					
C-3 12 3 4.1	Axie Dollar Vanance	X	-	-	X						
C-3 12 3 4 2	Audit Log	X		ļ	X						
C-3.12.3.4.3	Augit Estry Log	X	-	4		-		A	-	-	
C312344	Change Fund Andr	Z,		<u> </u>	N						
C-3 12.3 4.5	Detailed Aida	X	1	1	X				<u>.</u>		
C.3123.4.6	System Audit	Z,	-	_	X				۲_		
C-3 12 3 4 7	Home Away E-ZPast Transaction Report	N.	_		Z				Υ		
C-3:12.3.4.5	ORT Reconciliation Summary Report	X		L	X						
C-332349	Central Cash Accounting Place Return Report	N.		1	Z						
C-3 17 3 4 19		X			X				<u></u>		
C-3 12 3 4 11		Z			X						
C-34234.12		X			Z				2		
	Acute and Terminated TCS Users List	Z Z			N				2		
C 3 12 3 4 14	Money Bag Manifest Report	22			N				<u> </u>		
C 3 12.3 4.15	Bug Discrepancy Anda Report	Z			X				V.		
C-3 12 3 4 3 6	ICPI Audit	X			X				7		
C-3.12.3.4.17	Deposit Money Movement Audit Report	X			X				1	develo	
C-3 12 3 4 18	Cash Poom Amourt Aude Report	Z			X				5		
C-3.12.3.5	Traffic Reports		<u>, </u>								
C-3 12 3 5 1	Hourly Method of Payment Report	X			X				V		
C-3 12 3 5 2	Hourly Lane Traffic by Lane Report	X		1	X				8		
C-112333	Tradic to Lice Report	Z	T	I	X				¥		
C-3 123 54	Dagly Traffic Occurses Report	X			X						
C-3.12.5.6	Revenue and Traffic Comparisons and Projections		Q (0)				1				
C-3 12 3 6 1	Traffic and Revenue Report	X			X				V.		
C312362	Emiking Traffic Report	Z	1	T	X	-	I		2		
C-3 12 3 6 5	Fanking Revenue Repait	X	1	1	X	1	-		1		
C-3 12 3 6 4	Conflued Avenage Report	Z Z		1	X				V		
C-3.12.3.7	Daily Plaza Report	ì		1	time.					i	
C-312371	Page Event	X	-	1	X				-	1	
C-3.12.3.7.2	Transactions Detail:	X	-	1-	S	1			7	-	
C-3 12 3 7 3	Transmission Reconciliation Reports		-	1-	1	1	-		-		
2-212373	MANUFACTURE VECOME TO SELECTE			1	10	1	L	4	-	A	

Page 22 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section#	Conformance with RFP 2019-055 Requirements	Cess	معقو	(4)		lating lases. Tity	Contigue	es bill	ity *	Cuntrartes Comments
		1	8		ET	34 0	0 6	T	7	
312374	Transponder File Transmission Report	X			Z		X	T		
312375	Attendant Scheduling Report	X			X T		X			
313	Data Migration	X	\neg		X		X	T		AND THE STATE OF T
3131	Migration Approach	X		1	Z		N	7		
3132	Migranou Testing and Validation	X	-1		X T		IX		****	
-3 13 3	Explementation	X			x T		1 IX			
314	Date and Anti-Virus Protection	lx l	-		X		l X			
3.3	Digital Video Andri Svitega (DVAS)	X			7		X		_	
3453	DVA5 Architecture and Network Video Management Server	X	_		Z		X			
3152	DVAS Crajeras	x	-		x T		l x			
3133	DVAS Audit Application	X			X T		T X		**********	
.3 14	Video Serveillence Syriem	X			v 1		T X		-	·
315.1	VSS Camera	- X	-		2	+	1 18		-	
-3 16.11	IP Fixed Cameras (Outdoor Type)	X	-		S T	+	1 X		-	
316.2	VS5 Application	2			x 1	-	T X			
-3.17	V35 Application Standalone Capabilities		2000		r z	-	1 18			
3171	Later	- X			÷+	-	1 1x			
3 22	Paix	- X	\dashv		2	-	T X		+	
3113	Hor:	X	-		2	-	1 X		-	
		2 2	-		X	-	X		-	
119	Forcer Backup (UPS)	- Z			2		1 18			······································
	Managemance On Line Management System (MOMS)	N X	-		2	-	1 X		-	
3 19.1	Maintenance On line Management System (MOMS) Administration					_			-	
3192	Failure Malfunction Reporting	Z			X.		X X		-	
3.19.3	Performance and Status Monitoring - Real Time Display and User Interface	Z	_		8				-	
3 19.4	Remote Access	2	_		X		N		_	
3 19.5	Inventory Spare Paris Courrel	X			X		X	-		
-3.20	Communications Requirenents									
-3 20.1	Lane to Plaza Communications	2	_		Y.		1 12			
3 20 2	Plaza to Host Communication :	X	_		2		LIX			
3 20.3	Matgrepance Service	X			X		I X	1		
331	Environmental Requirements						4			
5.21.1	Weederproclaig	X			X					
-3.22	System Security						1	88		
3 22.1	Data Security and Integrity	Z			7		X			
3.22.2	Computer Access Security	X			X	1.67	N.			
-3.23	Physical Security									
3211	Enclosure Access	Z.			X		X		1	
423.2	Toll Collection System Lock Requirements	X			N.	1	I N	1		
-3.24	TCS Performance Requirements					4				
3341	Accusacy Regularization	X			X		X			
3.14.2	Meso-Tone-Between Fadure (MTBF)	X			Z		X			
3.24.3	Acquables	X			Z		X	T		
3.24.4	Chargeable and Non-Chargeable Failures									
-3.23.4.1	Chargeable Failures									
-3.25.4.2	Non-Chargeable Failures				Ī	83 B				
.4	TCS INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS									
A1	Installation Scope of Work and Requirements	X			X		N	T		Water Control of the
-4.2	Installation and Construction Coordination and Meetings									
421	Bi-Weekly Installation Meetings	X	1		Z		X	1		
	Construction Coordination	2			X		1 1X		-	

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section #	Conformance with RFF 2019-005 Requirements	0	plk	ace "	E Fwat	stellag docali	9.1	Configura	V-80 eg *	Centractor Community
		T V	TX			M	D	c c		
-4 }	System Installation Requirements	X	1		X			X		
-434	Installation Checklist	X			X			X		
44	Compliance to Standards	X X			X .			N.	0.00	
-45	Electrical Work	X	1		X			X		
-451	Electrical Registrements	- K	1		X			lx.		
452	Installation Regunements	X	1		X			IX.		
153	Mounting of Equipment, Conduct Astachment and Components	X			X		STAKES	N.		
154	Expectade	Y.	1	1	X		**********	IX.		
43.5	Conduit	lx.	1		X			IX		
455	Electrical Systems and Electronic Cable	X			X		- hanned	X		
43.7	Womz	X	1		X		*******	X		
458	Boning Grounding	7	-	1	X		ince	l x		
43.9	Surge Projection	X	-		X		-	N.		
16	Work Standards and Requirement;	X			7.	1	******	X		
47	FCC Literacy	X	-		X	\vdash		X		
.5	TCS TESTING	- là	akam	down						
5.1	Overview	T X	-		X		SUU	X		
3 2	Factory Acceptance Test (FAT)	X	-		X	-		X	-	
		X	-		X	-	****	1x	1-1-	
5 2.1	FAT Travel Cours	- X	+			-	-	1	+	
	System Acceptance Testing	- X	-	-	Z	-	-		-	
3.3.1	On Side Furni Invalidation Ten	X	-		X	-		12	\vdash	
3334	hvertees leving		-			-		12	-	
1312	Disease Recovery Text	Z.			X		Minor		-	
5.3.2	Statistical Evaluation Test	Z	-		X	\vdash	-	X		
5321	Measurement of Errors	- X	+-		X		100	X	-	
.5.4	Commissioning Tex		-			-		1 X	-	
33	Extended Operations Test (EOT)	X			<u>X</u>	-		1	-	
.56	Reasonableness Test	X	4	1	X			N.	-	High committee and the committee of the
-6	PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTION								-	
-6.Ĭ	Project Reporting and Meetings								-	
611	Monthly Report and Progress Meeting	Z	4		X	-		X	-	
e1.3	Project Meetings	X			N.	1		17	1	
6.1	Softag	X			X			Z.		
621	Key Personnel	X	4		X		_	Z	\vdash	
622	Stoffing Plan	X			X			X	1	
63	Documentation	Z			X			X		
6.1.1	Camiractor Developed Doctatementou	X	1		X			X.		
6311	Project Management Plan	7.			X		annor.	X		
6312	Schedule	X			X			X		
6.3.1.3	TCS Design Documentation									
63331	Preliminary Design Review	X			X			IX.		
63.1.3.2	System Detailed Design Review	X			X			Z.		
63.1.3.3	Detailed Design Document	Z			X			Z		
63.14	Skop Diawings	2			X		-	l lx		
6.3.1.5	Master Test Plan	Z			X			Z		
63.16	Installation and Transition Plan	Z			N			N.		
6.3.1.7	Maurienauce Plan	X			X.			X		
6.3.1.8	Massals									
63181	Toli Collector Manual	Z			7.			X		
63182	Toll Supervisor Magnal	lx.		1	X		1	Z		

Page 24 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section #	Conformance with RFF 1019-085 Requirements	C.	Compliance			Exterion Sty *			digweldin		Contractor Community
		7	N	TE	E	M		Ü	6	T	
C 63183	Administration Audit User's Manual	X	1	1	Z	-	-	-	X		
061184	Magnetiance and Service Manual	X		1	IX.				X		Paint Control of the
631.9	Party Linu and Citalogues	X		1	X				X		
63113	As State Distributes	X	1	1	X				X		
0.613	Third Parry Documentation	X	1	1	Z				X		
0.615	Third Parry Software Documentation	X		1	Z				X		
C-6 3.4	Third Part. Hardware Documentation	Z	1	1	7.				X		
0.64	Quairy Assurance and Quality Countol	X	1	T	X				X		
.641	Configuration Management System:	Z,		T	X				X		
0.643	Change Control Process	IX.	-		Z				X		
(61)	Fecords .	x	1	1	Te				X		
C & 1 1	Council of Perchase	EX.	-	1	X		-	School Services	X		
0.6.4.5	Inspection and Verification	X	+	†***	X				X	-	
615	Handling Storage and Delivery	N N	1	1	X	1		· · · · · ·	X	1	
C-64.7	Inspection at Subcontractor and Contractor Facilities	Z Z	1	1	X				Z	1	
246	Access to Inspection of Contractor's Facilities	Z	+	1-	X				X		
065	Traiging	X	-	1-	X			******	X .		
7	PROJECT SCHEDULE, PHASES AND MILESTONES			ėm.				imm		10000	
C-7.1	Project Planes	Z	+	1-	X				1		
0.72	Project Schedule	- X	-	1-	Z	-		-		-	
2.7.3	Work Progress	Z	-	1	TX.						
074	Phase	Z	-	+	X			-	X		
7+1	Phase IA	Z	-	+	X				X		
2-743	Phase IB		-	-	X				X	1	
2.743	Phase IC	- X	+	+-	X	-		-	Z	-	
0.85	France II		-	-	X			-	2	-	
C-8	PHASE II - TOS MAINTENANCE		-	t	100						
C-8 I	PASS H-103 MUNESCOL	X	4	Ť	Х				X		
C411	Summary Scope of Work	X X	-	+	x				X	-	
2812	Maintenance and Software Support Services	Z	+	\vdash	X	-	-		X	1	
.83	Warrenty Program	2	-	-	X	-	-	-	-	V.	
7-8-2-1	Hardware Warranty Program including Third Party Warranty	- X	-	+-	X	-			-	Ŕ.	
4832	Sofware Wanaux	l X	-	-	Z	-				Y.	
-8 2 2 1	Sofrware Problem Definitions	X	-	-	Z			- teamer	X		
9 3 3 3	Defect Sevents	X	+	+-	X	-	-		×	-	
411	Server Hardware Warragh	- X	-	+	1x	-			-	1	
38.7	Management Play	X	-	+-	12	-				-	
C-8-1	Maintenance Requirements		ndam)	dom	of class	E cono			L ine	No.	
2.8.4.1	Maintenance Coverage and Response Times	X	7	1	1		1	1	5		
0.842	Response and Repair times shall be calculated on a per event basis		1-	1	家	1			ix.	-	
C-8-4-3	Maintenance On-Line Management System (MOMS)	X	+	1-	1X	1	1	1-	X	1	
.844	Preventive Maintenance	18	+	1-	1x	 	1	1	X	1	
-845	Predictive Maintenance		-	1	蒙	1	-				
-846	Corrective Maintenance	X	-	+	TX-	1		-	X	1	i
3 4 3	Upgrades and Enhancements	X	+	1	X	1	1	1-	R-	1	t
848	Nonfrances	X	1	1	X	1	1		X	1	
243	Recording of Manienace Activities	X X	+	+-	TX.	1			X		
-8.5	Space Parts	X	1	1-	TX T	†	-	·	K.	1	
811	Spare Part Inventory and Tracking	- X	1	1	X	1-	-		X		l
812	Procurement and Control of Spare Paris	- X	1	1	TX-	1	******	1	15	1	l



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Section #	Conference with RFP 1019-065 Regulrements	c	Compliance			Existing Functionality			aligera	ulio "		Contractor Coldision
		Tv.	×	TE	L	M	0	E	10	7		
-8.53	hrventory Management	Z		1	X	T		Т	X		T	
-8 6	Cooperation with Other Contractors and Providers	X			X	1		L	N			
8.7	Emergency Response Management	X			Z				X		L	
-8.8	Inciden; and Revenue Loss Reporting	7.			X				X			
80	Maintenance Staffing, Materials and Training	X			X				X			
891	Maintenance Staffing Requirements	Z	L		X			L	X			
192	Toels and Materials	X	L		X				X		L	
8.9.3	Personnel Training	X	I		X			П	X			
8.9.1	Training Meterials and Ongoing Education	X		T	X			L	X			
.29:1	Traming Program	X			X		1		X			
8942	Training Records	X			N				X			
8943	Safety	Z			X			L	Z			
29.5	Maintenance and Protection of Traffic	Z		T	X				X			
896	Reporting Requirements	X			X		1		X			
8.9.7	Field and Shop Maintenance Records	X			2			I	X			
8971	Maurienance Schunary Reports	Z			X				Z			
4972	Additional Scaunery Reports	X			X			L	X		L	
4.15	On-Sith Documentation	X			X				Z			
-5.11	Maintenance Performance Requirements											
-8.11.1	Manifesance Coverage	X			X		1	1	X			
8 11 2	Performance Reviews	X							X			
8 11.3	Required Performance and Liquidated Damages Summary	Z			X				X			
-8 12	Security	Z			X	I			X			
-8 13	Confidentiality	Z			X		1	1	X			

- 1 Comphance V-YES, N-NO, E-EXCEEDS
 2 Extrang Functionality, E-EXISTING, M-MODIFY, D-DEVELOP

Existing denotes a current feature of the Couractor's proposed Solution that does not require further development.

Develop denotes a festure that will be developed new as pair of this Project

3 - Configuration: U - USER CONFIGURABLE C - CONFIGURABLE F - FIXED

Definition: for Configurability is defined in section C-2 of the RFP

ACTIVITY, DELIVERABLE, AND MILESTONE 3.

The project and all work under the contract shall be completed under two (2) overall phases including:

Phase I - New TCS Deployment - Phase shall involve the various efforts and task required to design, develop, install and commission the new TCS for revenue collection. Phase I shall be accomplished under the following sub phases;

Phase IA - Design, Development and Factory Test - Under this sub phase Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall complete the new TCS design and develop culminating in Factory Acceptance Test (FAT).

Phase IB - Installation, System Acceptance Testing and Commissioning - This will include the necessary efforts to provide any and all necessary installation and upgrade efforts including system commissioning testing.

Page 26 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50)



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Phase IC – Extended Operations Test (EOT) – This test will be a 90-day evaluation of the new TCS under live operating conditions to prove out conformance with the specified requirements. This phase also includes full system warranty support and maintenance by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.

Phase II - TCS Warranty and Maintenance – This phase begins on July 1, 2023 or after approved completion of Phase IB if beyond July 1, 2023. Warranty Period begins at the start of Phase IC for a minimum of three (3) months and continues through Phase II. The Contract maintenance term ends June 30, 2027.

3.1 Design/Implementation/Testing

tem No.	Event/Deliverable/ Milestone	Deliverable Type	Projected Delivery Date		
1	Notice to Proceed/Mobilization				
2	Project Management Plan	Written	30 Days from NTP		
3	Approved Baseline Project Schedule	Written	30 Days from NTP		
4	Preliminary Design Review Meeting & System Requirements Matrix	Written	60 Days from NTP		
5	Approved Master Test Plan	Written	75 Days from NTP		
6	Approved Draft Business Rules Document	Written	90 Days from NTP		
7	Approved Draft Interface Control Documents	Written	90 Days from NTP		
8	Approved Draft Detailed Design Document	Written	120 Days from NTP		
9	Approved Final Business Rule Document	Written	180 Days from NTP		
10	Approved Final Interface Control Documents	Written	180 Days from NTP		
11	Approved Final Detailed Design Document	Written	210 Days from NTP		
12	Receipt of Toll Equipment		200 Days from NTP		
13	Draft Maintenance Plan	Written	210 Days from NTP		
14	Successful Completion of Factory Acceptance Test and Report (Phase IA Complete)*	Test/Written	Phase 1A		
15	Approved installation, Transition Plan and Data Migration	Written	60 Days prior to Commissioning		
16	Training	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
17	Final Shop Drawings	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
18	Successful Completion of OHII, System Acceptance Testing and Commissioning*	Test/Written	Phase 1B		
19	Final Maintenance Plan	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
20	Approved TCS Maintenance and Service Manual	Written	60 Days after Installation		
21	Approved Toll Collector Manual	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
22	Approved Toll Shift Supervisor Manual	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
23	Approved Administrator/Audit User	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
24	Approved Maintenance Manual	Written	30 Days Prior to Commissioning		
25	Successful Completion of Installation and Commissioning and (Phase IB Complete)*	Test/Written	Phase 1B		
26	Successful Completion of EOT (Phase IC Complete)*	Test	Phase 1C		
2.7	Final Parts List and BOM	Written	30 Days prior to Final System Acceptance		
28	Approved As-Built Drawings	Written	30 Days prior to Final System Acceptance		
29	Software Escrow approved	Software			
30	Retainage**	5.00%			

^{*}Completion shall be based on approval by NHDOT.

Unless stated or otherwise agreed to between the NHDOT and the Contractor, the standard review time for the NHDOT shall be fifteen (15) business days.

*Final due dates will be set based on Conduent Project Schedule approved by NHDOT.

4. DELIVERABLE REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE

4.1 Non-Software and Written Deliverables Review and Acceptance

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide a written Certification that a non-software, written deliverable (such as the Test Plan) is final, complete, and ready for Review. After receiving such Certification from Conduent State & Local Solutions,

Page 27 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

^{**}Retainage Released after all final items (Final Parts List, BOM, Approved As-Built Drawings and Software Escrow) are delivered and all punch list issues are closed.

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Inc., the State will Review the Deliverable to determine whether it meets the requirements outlined in this Exhibit.

Detailed and accurate documentation is required to ensure sustainability of the TCS and that the NHDOT can operate and maintain the TCS. Detailed documentation shall enable the NHDOT to understand the TCS, thus resulting in better performance of audit and reconciliations. It also shall assist the NHDOT in making better, informed decisions on any required System changes or revisions to Business Rules.

Draft copies of all documentation shall be submitted to the NHDOT for review, and comment and the NHDOT shall have the right to require additional interim drafts at no additional cost should draft documentation submitted not be of adequate quality, or does not incorporate the NHDOT review comments, or have missing or incorrect information. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall submit two (2) electronic versions of all Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. developed documentation for the NHDOT review and Approval unless otherwise stated. Acceptable softcopy formats are Microsoft Office (latest NHDOT version), and Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF) for Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. prepared documentation as listed below. Unless otherwise noted or instructed by NHDOT, document deliverables require a draft and final draft submission for NHDOT review and approval.

- Draft Draft submittals shall be completed by Conducnt State & Local Solutions, Inc. with an intent to represent a 90% completion. NHDOT's review of the Draft shall serve as the initial review and to resolve any outstanding issues and/or clarifications needed for Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to complete the document and submit a Final Draft. NHDOT shall be allowed a fifteen (15) business day review period for all Draft submittals.
- Final Draft The Final Draft shall be considered 100% complete taking into consideration and applying all comments and resolutions from the Draft submittal. NHDOT's review of the Final Draft is intended to verify that all comments and resolutions have been appropriately applied. NHDOT shall be allowed a five (5) business day review period for all Final Draft submittals.

Final submittals shall also be subject to final review and approval by NHDOT and for subsequent payment where applicable.

The NHDOT reserves the right to reject any submittal which it feels has not been adequately prepared. The NHDOT will inform the Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in writing in such event and will request a resubmittal of the deliverable. NHDOT's rejection shall not waive Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. responsibility to fulfill and maintain the approved project schedule.

Page 28 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

In the event Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. fails to address comments appropriately requiring additional or repetitive reviews the NHDOT reserves the right to seek reimbursement for any additional consultant costs related to the additional review efforts. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall meet the submittal dates as indicated in Section 10.1.1 Activities/Deliverable/Milestones Pricing. Each of these submittals along with all corresponding drafts shall be clearly represented in the Project Schedule. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall ensure that the scheduling and submittal of all drafts take into account the required review and resubmittal times to meet the milestone deliverable date.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall take into consideration the review and response times of both the NHDOT and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in preparing and managing the timeliness of the document deliverables. As part of each review process, NHDOT will provide Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. with a consolidated set of comments on the deliverable submitted for review.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall respond in writing to all NHDOT provided comments. A comment resolution meeting may be conducted to clarify and resolve any remaining questions and issues concerning the comments and/or responses provided.

Based on NHDOT comments and the results of the comment resolution meeting, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall prepare a final version of the deliverable for NHDOT approval.

4.2 Software Deliverables Review and Acceptance

System/Software Testing and Acceptance shall be performed as set forth in the Test Plan and more particularly described in Acceptance and Testing Services described herein.

4.3 **Number of Deliverables**

Unless the State otherwise specifically agrees in writing, in no event shall Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. deliver to the State more than three (3) Deliverables for review at one time. As the State accepts a Deliverable, an additional Deliverable may be presented for review but at no time can the Deliverables exceed three (3) at a time without the authorization of the State.

Conditional and Unconditional Acceptance 4.4

By accepting a Deliverable, the State reserves the right to reject any and all Deliverables in the event the State detects any Deficiency in the System, in whole or in part, through completion of all Acceptance Testing, including but not limited to, Software/System Acceptance Testing, and any extensions thereof.

Page 29 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

5. CHANGE ORDER

PHASE I - (DESIGN, DEVELOPMENT, TESTING, DATA MIGRATION AND GO-LIVE)

The State may make changes or revisions at any time by written Change Order. Within ten (10) business days of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. receipt of a Change Order, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall advise the State, in detail, of any impact on cost (e.g., increase or decrease), the Schedule, or the Project Management Plan.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may request a change within the scope of the Contract by written Change Order, identifying any impact on cost, the Schedule, or the Project Management Plan. The State shall attempt to respond to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. requested Change Order within ten (10) business days. The State Agency must approve all Change Orders in writing.

All Change Order requests from Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to the State, and the State acceptance of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. estimate for a State requested change, will be acknowledged and responded to, either acceptance or rejection, in writing. If accepted, the Change Order(s) may be subject to the Contract amendment process, as determined to apply by the

PHASE II - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

The State may make changes or revisions at any time by written Change Request per NHDOT's Change Request Work Instruction included in Exhibit O: Certificates and Attachments. The State originated changes or revisions shall be approved by the Department of Information Technology. Within fifteen (15) business days of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. receipt of a Change Request, and test plan, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall advise the State, in detail, of any impact on cost, estimate time frame/schedule.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may request a change or revisions at any time by written Change Request per NHDOT's Change Request Work Instruction included in Exhibit O: Certificates and Attachments. The State shall attempt to respond to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. requested Change Request within fifteen (15) business days. The State Agency, as well as the Department of Information Technology, must approve all Change Requests in writing.

All Change Request(s) from Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to the State, and the State acceptance of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. estimate for a State requested change, will be acknowledged and responded to, either acceptance or rejection, in writing. If accepted, the Change Request(s) may be subject to the Contract amendment process, as determined to apply by the State.

Page 30 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

6. IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall employ an industry-standard Implementation strategy with a timeline set forth in accordance with the Project Management Plan:

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall manage Project execution and provide the tools needed to create and manage the Project's Project Management Plan and tasks, manage and schedule Project staff, track and manage issues, manage changing requirements, maintain communication within the Project Team, and Report status.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and the State shall adopt a Change Management approach to identify and plan key strategies, communication initiatives, and training plans.

7. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide project tracking tools and templates to record and manage Issues, Risks, Change Requests, Requirements, and other documents used in the management and tracking of the project. The State believes that effective communication and Reporting are essential to Project success. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall employ effective communication and Reporting strategies to ensure Project success. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Key Project Staff shall participate in meetings as requested by the State, in accordance with the requirements and terms of this Contract.

The Project requires the coordinated efforts of a Project Team consisting of both Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and State personnel. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide all necessary resources to perform its obligations under the Contract. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is responsible for providing all appropriate resources and personnel to manage this Project to a successful completion.

7.1 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Key Project Staff

7.1.1. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Contract Manager

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall assign a Contract Manager who will be responsible for all Contract authorization and administration, including but not limited to processing Contract documentation, obtaining executive approvals, tracking costs and payments, and representing the parties in all Contract administrative activities. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Contract Manager is:

Carlos Lozano 703-386-6803 Carlos,Lozano@Conduent.com

Page 31 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

7.1.2. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Project Manager

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall assign a Project Manager who is qualified to perform or supervise Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. obligations under this Agreement. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Project Manager is:

Francis Farrell 603-715-0399 Francis.Farrell@conduent.com

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. selection of the Project Manager shall be subject to the prior written approval of the State. The State's approval process may include, without limitation, at the State's discretion, review of the proposed Project Manager's resume, qualifications, references, and background checks, and an interview. The State may require removal or reassignment of Project Manager who, in the sole judgment of the State, is found unacceptable or is not performing to the State's satisfaction.

Project Manager must be qualified to perform the obligations required of the position under the Contract, shall have full authority to make binding decisions under the Contract, and shall function as Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. representative for all administrative and management matters. Project Manager must be available to promptly respond during normal Business Hours within Two (2) hours of inquiries from the State, and be at the site as needed. Project Manager must work diligently and use his/ her best efforts on the Project.

7.1.3. Change of Project Manager

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may not replace the Project Manager or change its assignment of Project Manager without providing the State written notice and obtaining the prior approval of the State of the replacement Project Manager. State approvals for replacement of Project Manager shall not be unreasonably withheld. The replacement Project Manager is subject to the same requirements and Review as set forth above. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall assign a replacement Project Manager within ten (10) business days of the departure of the prior Project Manager, and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall continue during the ten (10) business day period to provide competent project management Services through a qualified interim Project Manager.

7.1.4. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Additional Key Project Staff
The State considers the following individuals to be Key Project Staff for this Project:

Amie Grubb

Project Principal

Francis Farrell

Project Manager

Jeffrey Morris

Quality Assurance Manager

Page 32 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Babu Rengarajan Technical Delivery Manager
Sean Water Installation Manager and Maintenance Manager

The State reserves the right to require removal or reassignment of Key Project Staff who are found unacceptable to the State. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not change Key Project Staff commitments without providing the State written notice and obtaining the prior written approval of the State. State approvals for replacement of Key Project Staff will not be unreasonably withheld. The replacement Key Project Staff shall have comparable or greater skills than Key Project Staff being replaced.

7.1.5. Background Checks

The State may require, and, at its sole expense, conduct reference and background screening of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. staff assigned to this Contract.

7.1.6. Termination for Lack of Project Management and Key Project Staff

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, the State shall have the option to terminate the Contract, declare Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in default and to pursue its remedies at law and in equity, if Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. fails to assign a Project Manager and/or Key Project Staff meeting the requirements and terms of the Contract or if the State is dissatisfied with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. replacement of the Project Manager and/or Key Project Staff.

7.2 The State Key Project Staff

7.2.1. The State Contract Manager

The State shall assign a Contract Manager who shall function as the State's representative with regard to Contract administration. The State Contract Manager is:

Renee Dupuis	US Mail:
Department of Transportation	PO Box 2950
Bureau of Turnpikes	Concord NH 03302
Tel: (603)-485-3806	UPS, DHL, Federal Express (etc.):
Fax: (603)-485-2107	36 Hackett Hill Road
Cell: (603)-848-7481	Hooksett NH 03103
Renee.T.Dupuis@dot.nh.gov	Bill Sulling Superior Anna Superior Anna Superior Superio

7.2.2. The State Project Manager

The State shall assign a Project Manager. The State's Project Manager is:

Renee Dupuis	Tel: 603-485-3806
Department of Transportation	Fax: 603-485-2107
Bureau of Turnpikes	Cell: 603-848-7481
Renee.T.Dupuis@dot.nh.gov	Vi vigeninga sana katala
Reflec.1.Dupuis@dot.fiif.gov	

Page 33 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

The State Project Manager's duties shall include the following:

- a. Leading the Project;
- **b.** Engaging and managing all Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. working on the Project;
- c. Managing significant issues and risks;
- d. Reviewing and accepting Contract Deliverables;
- e. Invoice sign-offs;
- f. Review and approval of Change Orders;
- g. Managing stakeholders' concerns.

8. PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Project Manager and the State Project manager shall finalize the Project Management Plan within Thirty (30) business days after Contract Award upon approval by Governor and Council and further refine the tasks required to implement the Project. Continued development and management of the Project Management Plan Project Management Plan is a joint effort on the part of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and State Project Managers.

Refer to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Proposal, Section D-24 Project Management Plan for the Project Management Plan.

In conjunction with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Project Management methodology, which shall be used to manage the Project's life cycle, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. team and the State shall finalize the Project Management Plan at the onset of the Project. This plan shall identify the tasks, Deliverables, major milestones, task dependencies, and a payment Schedule required to implement the Project. It shall also address intra-task dependencies, resource allocations (both State and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. team members), refine the Project's scope, and establish the Project's Schedule.

9. ACCEPTANCE & TESTING SERVICES

The State requires that an integrated and coherent approach to complete System testing, Security Review and Testing, Deficiency correction, Acceptance, and training, and that Warranty Services be provided to ensure a successful Project.

In its Proposal, the Vendor is to include its proposed Test Plan methodology and any scheduling assumptions used regarding the client resource efforts required during testing. After Contract award, the Vendor will be required to customize its proposed Test Plan

Page 34 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: SD

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK

BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

methodology to reflect the needs of the Project and include the details of its Test Plan methodology in the detailed Project Management Plan (the first Project Deliverable). A separate Test Plan and set of test materials will be prepared for each Software function or module.

In addition, the Vendor will provide a mechanism for reporting actual test results vs. expected results and for the resolution and tracking of all errors and problems identified during test execution. The Vendor will also provide training as necessary to the State staff responsible for test activities.

MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT 10.

10.1 System Maintenance

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall maintain and support the System in all material respects as described in the Contract, through the Contract Completion Date. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall make available to the State the latest program updates, general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases, patches, and Documentation that are generally offered to its customers, at no additional cost.

Refer to RFP Sections C-8 Phase II - TCS Maintenance, C-8.1 TCS Maintenance and Software Continuous Support Services, C-8.2 Warranty Program and Term, C-8-3 Maintenance Plan, C-8.4 Maintenance Requirements, C-8.5 Spare Parts, C-8.6 Cooperation with Other Contractors and Providers, C-8.7 Emergency Response Management, C-8.8 Incident and Revenue Loss Reporting, C-8.9 Maintenance Staffing, Materials and Training, C-8.10 On-Site Documentation, C-8.11 Maintenance Performance Requirements, C-8.12 Security and C-8.13 Confidentiality.

10.2 **Contract Warranties and Representations**

10.4.1. System

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that any Systems provided under this Agreement will operate and conform to the Specifications, terms, and requirements of this Agreement.

10.4.2. Software

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that any Software provided as part of this Agreement, including but not limited to the individual modules or functions furnished under the Contract, is properly functioning within the System, compliant with the requirements of the Contract, and will operate in accordance with the Specifications and terms of the Contract.

Page 35 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

For any breach of the above Software warranty, in addition to all its other remedies at law and in equity, at the State's option Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall:

- a. provide the correction of program errors that cause breach of the warranty, or if Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. cannot substantially correct such breach in a commercially reasonable manner, the State may end its program license if any and recover the fees paid to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for the program license and any unused, prepaid technical support fees the State has paid for the program license; or
- b. the re-performance of the deficient Services, or
- c. if Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. cannot substantially correct a breach in a commercially reasonable manner, the State may end the relevant Services and recover the fees paid to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for the deficient Services.

10.4.3. Compatibility

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that all System components, including but not limited to the components provided, any replacement or upgraded System Software components provided by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to correct Deficiencies or as an Enhancement, shall operate with the rest of the System without loss of any functionality.

10.4.4. Services

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that all Services to be provided under this Agreement will be provided expediently, in a professional manner, in accordance with industry standards and that Services will comply with performance standards, Specifications, and terms of the Contract.

11. DATA PROTECTION

Protection of personal privacy and data shall be an integral part of the business activities of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to ensure there is no inappropriate or unauthorized use of State information at any time. To this end, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall safeguard the confidentiality, integrity and availability of State information and comply with the following conditions:

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall implement and maintain appropriate administrative, technical and organizational security measures to safeguard against unauthorized access, disclosure or theft of Personal Data and non-public information. Such security measures shall be in accordance with recognized industry practice and not less stringent than the measures Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. applies to its own Personal Data and non-public data of similar kind.

Page 36 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK

BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

- b. All data obtained by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in the performance of this contract and all Personal Data shall be encrypted at rest and in transit with controlled access. Unless otherwise stipulated, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is responsible for encryption of the Personal Data.
- c. Unless otherwise stipulated, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall encrypt all non-public data at rest and in transit. The State shall identify data it deems as non-public data to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. The level of protection and encryption for all non-public data shall be identified and made a part of this contract.
- d. At no time shall any data or processes that either belong to or are intended for the use of the State or its officers, agents, or employees be copied, disclosed or retained by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. or any party related to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for subsequent use in any transaction that does not include the State.
- e. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not use any information collected in connection with the service issued from this Contract for any purpose other than fulfilling the service.

11.1 Data Location

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide its Services to the State and its end users solely from data centers within the Continental United States. All storage, processing and transmission of State data shall be restricted to information technology systems within the Continental United States. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not allow its personnel or sub-contractors to store State data on portable devices, including personal computers, except as specified and allowed by the contract, and then only on devices that are used and kept at its data centers within the Continental United States. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall permit its personnel and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to access State data remotely only to provide technical support and as specified or required by the contract.

11.2 Security Incident or Data Breach

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall inform the State of any security incident or Data Breach in accordance with NH RSA Chapter 359-C:20: Notice of Security Breach.

a. Incident Response: Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may need to communicate with outside parties regarding a security incident, which may include contacting law enforcement, fielding media inquiries and seeking external expertise as mutually agreed upon, defined by law or contained in the Contract. Discussing security incidents with the State should be handled on an urgent asneeded basis, as part of the Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. communication and mitigation processes as mutually agreed upon, defined by law or contained in the contract.

Page 37 of 73

Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3/1/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B – STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

- b. Security Incident Reporting Requirements: Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall report a security incident to the State identified contact immediately if it reasonably believes there has been a security incident.
- c. Breach Reporting Requirements: If Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. has actual knowledge of a confirmed data breach that affects the security of any State content that is subject to applicable data breach notification law, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall (1) promptly notify the appropriate State identified contact within 24 hours or sooner, unless shorter time is required by applicable law, and (2) take commercially reasonable measures to address the data breach in a timely manner.

11.3 Breach Responsibilities

- 11.3.1. This section only applies when a Data Breach occurs with respect to State data within the possession or control of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and/or the third-party designee hosting the data as agreed upon by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and the State.
- 11.3.2. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., unless stipulated otherwise, shall immediately notify the appropriate State identified contact by telephone in accordance with the agreed upon security plan or security procedures if it reasonably believes there has been a security incident.
- 11.3.3. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., unless stipulated otherwise, shall promptly notify the appropriate State identified contact within 24 hours or sooner by telephone, unless shorter time is required by applicable law, if it confirms that there is, or reasonably believes that there has been a Data Breach Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall:
 - a. cooperate with the State as reasonably requested by the State to investigate and resolve the Data Breach.
 - b. promptly implement necessary remedial measures, if necessary; and
 - c. document responsive actions taken related to the Data Breach, including any post-incident review of events and actions taken to make changes in business practices in providing the services, if necessary.
- 11.3.4. Unless otherwise stipulated, if a Data Breach is a direct result of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. breach of its contract obligation or the third-party hosting company to encrypt Personal Data or otherwise prevent its release, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and/or the third-party hosting company shall bear the costs associated with:
 - a. the investigation and resolution of the Data Breach.
 - b. notifications to individuals, regulators or others required by State law.
 - c. a credit monitoring service required by State (or federal) law.
 - d. a website or a toll-free number and call center for affected individuals required by State law — all not to exceed the average per record per person cost calculated for Data Breaches in the United States

Page 38 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK

BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

(currently \$201 per record/person) in the most recent Cost of Data Breach Study: Global Analysis published by the Ponemon Institute at the time of the Data Breach; and

e. complete all corrective actions as reasonably determined by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. based on root cause; all [(a) through (e)] subject to this Contract's limitation of liability.

12. SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide the State with access to the Software Licenses and Documentation set forth in the Contract, and particularly described Exhibit D: Software Agreement

13. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide the State with the Administrative Services set forth in the Contract, and particularly described in Exhibit E: Administrative Services

14. TRAINING

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide a training schedule for toll collectors, supervisors, administration staff, and maintenance personnel. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will train the NHDOT'S toll collection staff in the functions of the toll collectors. Training shall include both "classroom" training as well be available for hands-on or in-the-field training.

A separate training course shall be provided, at a location in New Hampshire designated by the NHDOT, for each of the following categories of personnel:

- Toll Collectors:
 - o Five (5) sessions of courses required with a class size of up to ten (10) people and a minimum of two (2) hours per training class.
- Supervisors;
 - o Two (2) sessions of courses required with a class size of up to ten (10) people and a minimum of four (4) hours per training class.
- Administrator/Auditor Personnel;
 - o Two (2) sessions of courses required with a class size of up to ten (10) people and a minimum of four (4) hour per training class.
- Operations Personnel
 - o One session of course required with a class size of up to ten (10) people and a minimum of four (4) hours per training class.

Maintenance training shall include both "classroom" training and extensive field training. These requirements shall be satisfied during the Warranty Period, commencing at a time designated by the NHDOT.

Page 39 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT B - STATEMENT OF WORK BUSINESS / TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERABLES

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide complete set of training manuals for all personnel to be trained.

In support of future collector training Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall also provide three (3) training workstations.

15. TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Terms and Definitions applicable to this Contract are identified in Exhibit F: Terms and Definitions.

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATES 16.

Required Contractor Certificates are attached in Exhibit G.

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 40 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Solutions, Inc. Initials: Solutions Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

The terms outlined in the Payment Schedule is set forth below:

1. CONTRACT PRICE

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments made by the State exceed the amount indicated in P-37 General Provisions - Block 1.8: Price Limitation. The payment by the State of the total Contract price shall be the only, and the complete reimbursement to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. for all fees and expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in the performance hereof.

2. TRAVEL EXPENSES

The State will not be responsible for any travel or out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of the Services of this Contract. The State will reimburse to any travel or out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of any services resulting from Change Requests and Work Orders.

SHIPPING FEES 3.

The State will not pay for any shipping or delivery fees unless specifically itemized in this Agreement.

4. INVOICING

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall submit correct invoices to the State for all amounts to be paid by the State. All invoices submitted shall be subject to the State's prior written approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall only submit invoices for Services or Deliverables as permitted by the Contract. Invoices must be in a format as determined by the State and contain detailed information, including without limitation: itemization of each Deliverable and identification of the Deliverable for which payment is sought, and the Acceptance date triggering such payment; date of delivery and/or installation; monthly maintenance charges; any other Project costs or retention amounts if applicable.

Upon Acceptance of a Deliverable, and a properly documented and undisputed invoice, the State will pay the correct and undisputed invoice within thirty (30) days of invoice receipt. Invoices will not be backdated and shall be promptly dispatched.

INVOICE ADDRESS 5.

Invoices may be sent to:

Department of Transportation

Page 41 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 – Toll Collection System EXHIBIT C – PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Bureau of Turnpikes Renee Dupuis 7 Hazen Drive

PO BOX 483 Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0483

6. PAYMENT ADDRESS

Payments shall be made via ACH. Use the following link to enroll with the State Treasury for ACH payments: https://www.nh.gov/treasury/state-vendors/index.htm

7. OVERPAYMENTS TO CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall promptly, but no later than fifteen (15) business days, return to the State the full amount of any overpayment or erroneous payment upon discovery or notice from the State.

8. CREDITS

The State may apply credits due to the State arising out of this Contract, against Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. invoices with appropriate information attached.

9. CONTRACT EXTENSION COSTS

Contract extension costs for maintenance and labor rates are based on COLA, if extended at the sole option of the State as outlined in Contract Agreement-Special Provisions Section A1, Effective Date/Completion of Services. Training will be negotiated at the time of the contract extension.

10. PROJECT HOLDBACK

The State shall withhold five percent (5%) of the price for each Deliverable, as set forth in the Appendix B Table 1.5 Project Delivery Cost Detail Phase I – III until successful Final System Acceptance.

11. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.1 Non-Exclusive Not To Exceed

This is a Non-Exclusive Not to Exceed (NTE) with a maximum contract value of \$12,588,927.88 or the period between the Effective Date through June 30, 2027. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall be responsible for performing its obligations in accordance with this Contract. This Contract will allow Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to invoice the State for the following Activities, Deliverables, or milestones appearing in the price and payment tables below.

Page 42 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Date: 3-5-22

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.2 Cost Summary Detail **Table 11.2 Cost Summary Details**

Description		sign, Build & elementation	Mais Exis	erations and intenance of ting System ar 1 (FY 23)	Year 2 Maintenance (FY 24)	Year 3 Maintenance (FY 25)	Year 4 Maintenance (FY 26)	Year 5 Maintenance (FY 27)	Contract Item Total
Table 11.4 Bond, Issuance and Software Escrow Total	5	59,508.91							\$ 59,508.91
Table 11.5 Toll Hardware	\$	2,816,892.13			\$ 25,428.00	\$ -	\$ 226,200,00	5 -	\$ 3,068,520.13
Table 11.6 Software, Professional Services and Documentation	\$	2,225,573.21			\$ 16,395.60	\$ 16,887.47	\$ 17,394.09	\$ 17,915.91	\$ 2,294,166.29
Table 11.7 Civil and Electrical Design and Construction	5	228,511.40						to water the second second	\$ 228,511.40
Table 11.8 installation		ALC: NO.							\$ -
Table 11.9.1 Maintenance Costs FY 2023			\$	1,575,520.00					\$ 1,575,520.00
Table 11.9.2 Maintenance Costs FY 2024					\$ 1,417,925.59	day and a second	Marian Marian	and the State of t	\$ 1,417,925.59
Table 11.9.3 Maintenance Costs FY 2025						\$ 1,498,804.04			\$ 1,498,804.04
Table 11.9.4 Maintenance Costs FY 2026							\$1,195,659.54		\$ 1,195,659.54
Table 11.9.5 Maintenance Costs FY 2027								\$ 1,250,311.99	5 1,250,311.99
FISCAL YEAR TOTALS TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE	\$	5,330,485.65	\$	1,575,520.00	\$ 1,459,749.19	\$ 1,515,691.51	\$ 1,439,253.63	\$ 1,268,227.90	\$ 12,588,927.88

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 43 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Solutions Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.3 Design, Testing and Implementation Payment Schedule Table 11.3 Design, Testing and Implementation Payment Schedule

tem No.	Event/Deliverable/ Milestone	Percent Payment	Cumulative Gross Payment	Payment Minus Retainage	Cumulative Net Payment	Payment Amount	Cum	nulative Payment Amount
erenning special services			E	Total	Cost Phases I - IC	\$		5,330,485.65
1	Notice to Proceed/Mobilization	5.00%	5.00%	4.75%	4.75%	\$ 253,198.07	\$	253,198.07
2	Project Management Plan	4.00%	9.00%	3.80%	8.55%	\$ 202,558.45	5	455,756.52
3	Approved Baseline Project Schedule	2.00%	11.00%	1,90%	10.45%	\$ 101,279.23	5	557,035.75
4	Preliminary Design Review Meeting & System Requirements Matrix	4.00%	15.00%	3.80%	14.25%	\$ 202,558.45	\$	759,594,20
.5	Approved Master Test Plan	4.00%	19.00%	3,80%	18.05%	\$ 202,558.45	5	962,152.66
6	Approved Draft Business Rules Document	2.00%	21.00%	1,90%	19.95%	\$ 101,279.23	\$	1,063,431.89
7	Approved Draft Interface Control Documents	2.00%	23.00%	1.90%	21.85%	\$ 101,279.23	5	1,164,711.11
В	Approved Draft Detailed Design Document	5.00%	28.00%	4,75%	26,60%	5 253,198.07	5	1,417,909.18
2	Approved Final Business Rule Document	2.00%	30.00%	1,90%	28.50%	\$ 101,279.23	S	1,519,188.41
10	Approved Final Interface Control Documents	2.00%	32.00%	1.90%	30,40%	\$ 101,279.23	5	1,620,467.64
11	Approved Final Detailed Design Document	5.00%	37,00%	4.75%	35.15%	\$ 253,198.07	5	1,873,665.70
12	Receipt of Toil Equipment	5.00%	42.00%	4.75%	39.90%	\$ 253,198.07	5	2,126,853.77
13	Draft Maintenance Plan	5.00%	47,00%	4,75%	44,65%	\$ 253,198.07	5	2,380,061.84
14	Successful Completion of Factory Acceptance Test and Report (Phase IA Complete)	7.00%	54.00%	6,65%	51.30%	\$ 354,477.30	5	2,734,539.14
15	Approved Installation, Transition Plan and Data Migration	4.00%	58.00%	3.80%	55,10%	\$ 202,558.45	5	2,937,097.59
16	Training	5.00%	63.00%	4.75%	59.85%	\$ 253,198.07	\$	3,190,295.66
17	Final Shop Drawings	2.00%	65.00%	1.90%	61.75%	5 101,279.23	5	3,291,574.89
18	Successful Completion of OFIT, System Acceptance Testing and Commissioning	7.00%	72.00%	6.65%	68.40%	\$ 354,477.30	\$	3,646,052.18
19	Final Maintenance Plan	2.00%	74.00%	1.90%	70.30%	5 101,279.23	5	3,747,331.41
20	Approved TCS Maintenance and Service Manual	2.00%	76.00%	1.90%	72.20%	\$ 101,279.23	\$	3,848,610.64
21	Approved Toll Collector Manual	2.00%	78.00%	1.90%	74.10%	\$ 101,279.23	5	3,949,889.86
22	Approved Toll Shift Supervisor Manual	2.00%	80.00%	1.90%	76.00%	5 101,279,23	5	4,051,169.09
2.3	Approved Administrator/Audit User	1.00%	81.00%	0.95%	76.95%	\$ 50,639.61	S	4,101,808.70
24	Approved Maintenance Manual	1.00%	82.00%	0.95%	77.90%	\$ 50,639.61	\$	4,152,448.32
25	Successful Completion of Installation and Commissioning and (Phase 18 Complete)	5.00%	81.00%	4,75%	82.65%	\$ 253,198.07	\$	4,405,546.39
26	Successful Completion of EOT (Phase IC Complete)	7.00%	85.00%	6,65%	89.30%	5 354,477.30	5	4,760,123.68
27	Final Parts List and BOM	2.00%	82.00%	1.90%	91.20%	5 101,279.23	S	4,861,402.91
28	Approved As-Built Drawings	2.00%	83.00%	1.90%	93.30%	\$ 101,279.23	\$	4,962,682.14
29	Software Escrow approved	2.00%	84.00%	1.90%	95.00%	5 101,279.23	15	5,063,961.36
30	Retainage*	5.00%		5,00%	100.00%	\$ 266,524.28	5	5,330,485.65

delivered and all punch list issues are closed.

11.4 Bond, Issuance and Software Escrow Total Table 11.4 Bond, Issuance and Software Escrow Total

				ilge, Ba		Yes	r 1 Mais SFY 2	benarios 3)	Year	(FY 24)		Year	3 Mainte (FY 25)		Year 4 Maintenance (FY 2b)			Yea	S Mainta (FY 27		Contract Here Total
DESCRIPTION	COMMENT	1300	Unit Price	bry	Extended Price	Unit	Oty	Extended Price	'Unit Price	Diy	Estended Price	Unit Frise	Qty	Estancies Prios	Link Price	Oty	Extensed Price	Litet Proce	City	Faseroled Price	Herri Tole
Performance Bond*		LS	\$50,506.91	1.00										0.00							\$ 59,508.9
Insurance Policy	Included in over all Sond, theurence and Software Escrew Costa																				
Software Escrow	included in over all Bond,				5.000																

Grand Total [\$55,508.91]

Page 44 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

^{**}Retainage Released after all final items (Final Parts List, BOM, Approved As-Built Drawings and Software Escrow) are

Unless stated or otherwise agreed to between the NHBOT and the Contractor, the standard review time for the NHDOT

shall be fifteen (15) business days.
*Final due dates will be set based on Conduent Project Schedule approved by NHDOT.

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.5 Toll Hardware Table 11.5 Toll Hardware

			Design, Bu	4d & to	nyde mentation	O.	orabine and ordenasce of	Year	HAR (FY:	stemetice 41	Yes		v 26)	Year	State (FY	16)	Yee	9 Malmersone (FY 27)	Contract
Contract Contract			260	64	Extended Price	Land	Dy Colombod Prins	Dett		Databal HE Prince	Landil.		Extended Price	\$ healt	J.	Extensed Price	Link	Gry Estanded Price	Sam Total
DESCRIPTION	COMMENT	1350	Price			100		Price	No.					Prince			Pries		
TCS Host Hardware (Server, RAID, Rick, Tope Library, etc.)	NA													Was sall bases of					5
offsite/cloud based Lane Controller	Includes expansion retrestors.	1.5	\$ 1,250,412	1.00	\$ 1,253,411.75		_		Н										\$ 1,353,411.79
Automatic Venicle Classification (AVC) Subsystem Laser Sensor - Over- dmansional Vehicle	WA																		•
Separation Communication		Н				\vdash			Н		-	\vdash			H		H		
Equipment	WA	Ш							Н						-				
Mancal Lane Terminal	MA.	-							1						+				-
Recept Poster	WA.								\vdash						-				-
Larve Traffic Rignal	18K				ļ	-			-		,,,,,,,,,,,	-			-				
Lane Status Indicator Light	NIA														1				\$ -
Patron Face Ossplay		1.3	\$231,52630	1.00	1 231,326.90										-	·*·····			\$ 291,526.9
PC Workstations (Supervisor, Cesh Out,	N/A	П																	\$ ==
Admin, Etc.) Predera	WA	-	***************************************	Samme.	-			***************************************	-				eliskom warman mood	NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.	+				8
Lene Loops and	N/A	H										П		***************************************	T				\$.
Detectors Violation Enforcement System (VES)		LS	\$650,725,04	1 00	\$ 856,725,04								AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PERSONS		T				\$ 858,725.0
Comerce and Lighting		-				-			-		*****				+		-		+
Uranterruptible Power Suppluses		LS.	\$ 53,004.71	1.00	\$ 53,004 71														\$ 53,004.7
Kupson 8-ZPwss Reader ETC Subsystem (JANUS OPTIONS										ll.									5
Kapsch E-ZPass Lane Kit ETC Bubsystem (JANAUS OPTION)	NA												.,	A LANGEST CO. LANGEST CO.					\$ 4
Kapisch E-ZPasis Över Dimensional Lane Kit ETC Subsystem LIANUS OPTIONS	REA													\$226 200 0	,	\$ 226,700.00			\$ 226,2000
Digital Video Audit System		LS	\$282,386.06	\$1.00	\$ 262,366.06											************			\$ 282,386.0
Video Surveillance System (VSS)	NGA				1														\$.
New TCS Spare Parts		1.8	\$117,837.50	\$1.00	\$ 117,637 59			-	П										\$ 117,837.6
inventory						-		\$25,428.00	1	\$ 25,421.00				***************************************	1-		1		8 25,429.0
Youch Screens	L	1			\$ 2,816,892.12					\$ 25,420.00	Sudi			***	and and	5 . 226, 200 90	1 504	intal 5	
				HARMA COSTS	2 2,236,833.13	1		341	repails.	* ********	- 2000	and the		L.,	******			GRAND TOTAL	5 3,668,530.1

11.6 Software, Professional Services and Documentation Table 11.6 Software, Professional Services and Documentation

			Drange, Burkl & Explorer and Maintenance of E				Year	2 Marie (FY 24)		Year	2 Statestan (PV 20)	harce	444	FYIN	MACE S	Tave	CY 17)		Gentraci New York
DESCRIPTION	CONNENT	ue.		Shid Pres	04	Calumbiad Price	tied Rate	o.,	Estroles Price	Link Poice	Ore	Estended Price	test free	City	Extension Price	Quit Price	CV4	Esterated Policy	
TOS HOMPHAZACANE Contribat/DVAS/VSS Software		t\$,	1,597,817.98	5,00	\$ 1,507,817,00										7.2			\$ 1,667,817.
System Missputon	1	1.3	3	124,271.00	1.60	\$ 124,971.56								200					5 324 375
	DER		1			3.		0.000	E		0000000				100000000000000000000000000000000000000				1
Testing		1.5	3	100,129,72	1.00	\$ 100,139.72													\$ 100,138
Documentation		(6	1 5	221,440.13	1.00	\$ 721,449.13				1.0000000	\$600000	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	0.000	100000					\$ 221,490
Training		1.5	1	45,793.73	1.00	\$ 45,793.73	300000	600000		1	######################################								\$ 45,701
Dale Migration	Included in overall Schware, Professional Services and Doctoreed Cooks		3	•	Shire	* 4-													
Third Ferty Soltware Licenses (8st, quantity and price superately)		Ļs	s	67,866.11	5.00	\$ 63,696.11	\$ 16,395 00	100	\$ 16,396 60	\$15,867.47	1.00	\$ 10.887,47	\$17,394.06	1:00	\$ 17,304.09	\$17,015.01	1.00	\$ 17,915.91	
Project Menagement		1.5		56.113.52	1:00	\$ 68,143.53					1			L	\$ 27, 294.00		L	\$17,985.91	\$ 88,113

Grand Total [52.294.306.25]

Page 45 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.7 Civil and Electrical Design and Construction Table 11.7 Civil and Electrical Design and Construction

			Design, Sul	ki il lety	Hamontation	**	er 1 Ma (FY	ntemance 23)	Year	2 Mainte (FY 24)	nance	Yes	3 Matri	tenance 9	Yes	Year 4 Maintenaisca (FY 26)		Yes	FY?		Contract Sen Total
			Unik	Q _y	Extended	Unti	Ony	Extended	Uest	Chy	Expressed	Unit	City	East-ded	Unit	St.	Exemped	Unit	Eleg	Extended	
BESCRIPTION	COMMENT	LIME	Price	344	frice	Price		Police -	Price	MIXE	Price	Price	34	Price	Price		Price	frice		Price	
Development of Foli System installation Plans		LS	\$ 23,400.00	1.00	\$ 23,400.00																\$ 23,400.0
Civil Work	T	l,S	\$205,111.60	1.00	\$205,111.40			2000			B 1000			E33350							\$205,111
Electrical Work (AC Power, Data, RF Cabling)	Incoded in overall Clief & Electrical Design & Costruction Cost																				

Grand Total \$228,511.48

11.8 Installation **Table 11.8 Installation**

					gn, Build i inventistic			Agent Sing	ellorse and temperate of System Year (FY 23)			Maintamance FY 24)	٧.		Maintenance FY 25)	Yei	Year 4 Maintenance (FY 26)		Yes		daintenance FY 27)	Years
			Unit	06	Extended	Price	Unit	Chy	Estended Price	Lists	00	Estended Price	Unst	Jo,	Extended Price	Liest	Otty	Estended Price	Links	Qty	Extended Price	1000
DESCRIPTION	соммент	92	187700				2350			2280		1	1200			2000			10000			
Installation														1_			_					
	tockeded in overall Coolign, Build and implementation cost.																					
MOMS SW	inclaided in merali Design, Build and Imprementation Cost		П	Π							Г											
DVAS SW	Included in overall Geolgis, Build and Implementation			Т				Г						П								
	Biodiadedi in overall Design, Blord and implementation Goet																					
Communications Interface	Included in overall Design, Build and Implementation Cost																					
	Instituted in everall Corcego, Build and Improventation Cost			Π																		

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 46 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.9 Maintenance Costs Table 11.9.1 Maintenance Costs FY 2023

Operations and Maintenance of Existing System Year 1- FY 2023DescriptionUnit CostMonthsHardware Operations and Maintenance\$125,460.0012\$Maintenance Contingency\$70,000.00\$				
Description	Unit Cost	Months		Cost
Hardware Operations and Maintenance	\$125,460.00	12	\$	1,505,520.00
Maintenance Contingency	\$ 70,000.00		\$	70,000.00
	FY 2023 Total Mainten	ance Costs	\$	1,575,520.00

Table 11.9.2 Maintenance Costs FY 2024

Year 2 - I	FY 2024		
Description	Unit Cost	Months	Cost
1st Year Hardware Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 74,814.65	12	\$ 897,775.85
1st Year Software Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 39,179.15	12	\$ 470,149.74
Maintenance Contingency	\$ 50,000.00		\$ 50,000.00
FY	2024 Total Mainten	ance Costs	\$ 1,417,925.59

Table 11.9.3 Maintenance Costs FY 2025

Year 3	- FY 2025		可以是是是自己的
Description	Unit Cost	Months	Cost
1st Year Hardware Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 71,251.10	12	\$ 855,013.20
1st Year Software Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 46,982.57	12	\$ 563,790.84
Maintenance Contingency	\$ 80,000.00		\$ 80,000.00
FY	2025 Total Mainten	ance Costs	\$ 1,498,804.04

Table 11.9.4 Maintenance Costs FY 2026

Year 4 - FY 2026				
Description	Unit Cost	Months		Cost
1st Year Hardware Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 54,588.22	12	\$	655,058.61
1st Year Software Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 40,883.41	12	\$	490,600.93
Maintenance Contingency	\$ 50,000.00		\$	50,000.00
	FY 2026 Total Mainten	ance Costs	\$	1,195,659.54

Page 47 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: State: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Table 11.9.5 Maintenance Costs FY 2027

Year 5 - FY 2027				
Description	Unit Cost	Months		Cost
1st Year Hardware Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 55,762.85	12	\$	669,154.25
1st Year Software Warranty and Maintenance	\$ 41,763.15	12	\$	501,157.74
Maintenance Contingency	\$ 80,000.00		\$	80,000.00
FY	2027 Total Mainten	ance Costs	\$	1,250,311.99
TO	OTAL MAINTENAN	CE COSTS	\$	6,938,221.16

11.10 Labor Rates

The State may request additional Services from Conduent State & Local Solutions and requires rates in the even that additional Service is required. The following format must be used to provide this information. "SFY" refers to State Fiscal Year. The New Hampshire Fiscal year runs from July 1 through June 30 of the following calendar year.

Table 11.10 Labor Rates Worksheet

Item	Labor Category	FY 23	FY 24	FY 25	FY 26	FY 27
	Fully Burdened Hourly Rate	2000				
1	Project Manager	\$ 257.50	\$ 265.23	\$ 273.19	\$ 281.39	\$ 289.83
2	Database Analyst	\$ 175.04	\$ 180.29	\$ 185.70	\$ 191.27	\$ 197.01
3	Senior Programmer Analyst- On shore	\$ 208.34	\$ 214.59	\$ 221.03	\$ 227.66	\$ 234.49
4	Senior Programmer Analyst- Off shore	\$ 80.22	\$ 82.63	\$ 85.11	\$ 87.66	\$ 90.29
5	Database Administrator	\$ 201.17	\$ 207.21	\$ 213.43	\$ 219.83	\$ 226.42
6	Hardware Engineer	\$ 159.86	\$ 164.66	\$ 169.60	\$ 174.69	\$ 179.93
7	Licensed Electrician	\$ 190.44	\$ 196.15	\$ 202.03	\$ 208.09	\$ 214.33
8	Installation Technitian	\$ 141.72	\$ 145.97	\$ 150.35	\$ 154.86	\$ 159.51
9	Maintenance Manager	\$ 122.02	\$ 125.68	\$ 129.45	\$ 133.33	\$ 137.33
10	Maintenance Technician	\$ 67.20	\$ 69.22	\$ 71.30	\$ 73.44	\$ 75.64

^{*} Labor Rates for optional years 6 through 9 will be based on Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).

Page 48 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Solutions Date: 3/5/2.2



^{**}Any travel for out of scope work will be reimbursed by NHDOT without markup. All travel shall be approved by NHDOT prior to commencement of travel. Prior to travel the Contractor shall submit to NHDOT a travel request detailing the estimated costs to complete the trip for each individual. All travel reimbursements must be supported by appropriate records and receipts.

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT C - PRICE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

11.11 Spare Parts **Table 11.11 Spare Parts**

ltem	Qty
LANE CONTROLLER COMPONENTS	
IPC-6608 BP Bare Chassis RoHS	4
MiniRPS 300W ATX WITH ACTIVE PFC(ZIPPY)	8
7 Slots PICMG1.3BP, 2PCle, 4PCl RoHS K	4
LGA1150 Q87 FSHB DDR3/Core i7/VGA/USB3/	4
CORE 3.1G 8M 1150P 4 CORE I7-4770S	4
8G DDR3-1600 240PIN 512X8 VLP MIC(G)	8
Cooler I-LGA1156 S-95W 83*83*56.5mm-SS	4
Standard Assembly, BIOS check, Power on	4
2.5" Hot Swap Hard Drive Tray	4
WD AV-25 WD10JUCT hard drive - 1TB	8
Adaptec RAID 6405E Storage Controller	4
RocketPort universal PCI 16-Port serial card	4
RocketPort INFINITY 16-Port serial card	4
RocketPort 16-Port RS-232/422 interface	4
EVERCOOL SB-F1 Case Cooling Fan	4
Fiber NIC 1000Mbps PCI 1 x LC	4
10/100/1000 Mbps Ethernet Network Adapter Card	4
Duplex Multimode 62.5/125 Fiber Adapter (LC-ST M/F) 0.3M (1-ft.)	4
Patron Fare Display	
19" TRMI Display Model #TRMI19PFD	4
JAI CAMERAS & FLASHES	
Lane Cameras:	
VIS-CAM-1000-AIO	
Horizontal Field of View (on road) = 15 ft @	
150 pixels per plate (needed for OCR)	
Vehicle Imaging Subsystem, including :	
TS-5000EN High Resolution Progressive Scan	8
Monochrome Camera with AIO Housing w/	"
filter,IR LEDs, 14-50MM Fixed Focal Length IR	
Lens with Adjustment Lock-Downs,	
24VDC/50W Heaters and Pan/Tilt/Role	
Mount.	1

Page 49 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 5D
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation **Bureau** of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

The terms outlined in the Software Agreement are set forth below:

1. LICENSE GRANT

1.1 CUSTOM SOFTWARE -- Perpetual License -- Subject to the upfront payment of all applicable license fees:

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. hereby grants to the State a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-transferable, limited License to use the Software and its associated Documentation, subject to the terms of the Contract. The State may allow its agents and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to access and use the Software, and in such event, the State shall first obtain written agreement from such agents and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. that each shall abide by the terms and conditions set forth herein.

SAAS -- Grant of Rights 1.2

During the Subscription Term, the State will receive a nonexclusive, non-assignable, royalty free, worldwide right to access and use the Software and its associated documentation solely for the State's internal business operations subject to the terms of this Agreement and up to the number of Licenses documented in the Agreement.

The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is a Services agreement and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will not be delivering copies of the Software to Customer as part of the Agreement.

2. SOFTWARE TITLE

Title, right, and interest (including all ownership and intellectual property rights) in the Software, and its associated Documentation, shall remain with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.

Upon successful completion and/or termination of the Implementation of the Project, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall own and hold all, title, and rights in any Software modifications developed in connection with performance of obligations under the Contract, or modifications to the Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. provided Software, and their associated Documentation including any and all performance enhancing operational plans and Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc's. special utilities. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall license back to the State the right to produce, publish, or otherwise use such Software, , object code, modifications, reports, and Documentation developed under the Contract.

Page 50 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: State: 2/5/22

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

In no event shall the Vendor be precluded from developing for itself, or for others, materials that are competitive with, or similar to Custom Software, modifications developed in connection with performance of obligations under the Contract. In addition, the Vendor shall be free to use its general knowledge, skills, experience, and any other ideas, concepts, know-how, and techniques that are acquired or used in the course of its performance under this Agreement.

All rights, title and interest in State Data shall remain with the State. All data and any property which has been received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. must hold the right to allow the State to use the Software or hold all title, right, and interest (including all ownership and intellectual property rights) in the Software and its associated Documentation.

3. SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTATION COPIES

The State shall be entitled to copies of any work product upon request to Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. At the conclusion of this Agreement, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. agrees to provide all copies of the Software for all versions, including related documentation, to the State. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not retain any work product associated with this Agreement unless authorized by the State in writing.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide the State with a sufficient number of hard copy versions of the Software's associated Documentation and one (1) electronic version in Microsoft Word and PDF format. The State shall have the right to copy the Software and its associated Documentation for its internal business needs. To the extent that the State does not have possession of the Software, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide a reasonable number of copies of the Software and associated Documentation upon request. The State agrees to include copyright and proprietary notices provided to the State by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. on such copies.

4. RESTRICTIONS

Except as otherwise permitted under the Contract, the State agrees not to:

- Remove or modify any program markings or any notice of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. proprietary rights;
- **b.** Make the programs or materials available in any manner to any third party for use in the third party's business operations, except as permitted herein; or
- c. Cause or permit reverse engineering, disassembly or recompilation of the programs.

Page 51 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

5. VIRUSES

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide Software that is free of viruses, destructive programming, and mechanisms designed to disrupt the performance of the Software in accordance with the Specifications. As a part of its internal development process, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will use reasonable efforts to test the Software for Viruses.

6. AUDIT

Upon forty-five (45) days written notice, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may audit the State's use of the programs at Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. sole expense. The State agrees to cooperate with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. audit and provide reasonable assistance and access to information. The State agrees that Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall not be responsible for any of the State's reasonable costs incurred in cooperating with the audit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. audit rights are subject to applicable State and federal laws and regulations.

7. SOFTWARE NON-INFRINGEMENT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. warrants that it has good title to, or the right to allow the State to use all Services, equipment, and Software, including any all component parts thereof such as third party Software or programs that may be embedded in the Software ("Contracted Resources") provided under this Contract, and that such Services, equipment, and Software do not violate or infringe any patent, trademark, copyright, trade name or other intellectual property rights or misappropriate a trade secret of any third-party.

The Warranty of non-infringement shall be an on-going and perpetual obligation that shall survive termination of the Contract. In the event that someone makes a claim against the State that any Contracted Resources infringe their intellectual property rights, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall defend and indemnify the State against the claim provided that the State:

- a. Promptly notifies Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. in writing, not later than 30 days after the State receives actual written notice of such claim;
- b. Gives Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. control of the defense and any settlement negotiations; and
- c. Gives Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. the information, authority, and assistance reasonably needed to defend against or settle the claim.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the State's counsel may participate in any claim to the extent the State seeks to assert any immunities or defenses applicable to the State.

If Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. believes or it is determined that any of the Contracted Resources may have violated someone else's intellectual property rights,

Page 52 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may choose to either modify the Contracted Resources to be non-infringing or obtain a License to allow for continued use, or if these alternatives are not commercially reasonable, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may end the License, and require return of the applicable Contracted Resources and refund all fees the State has paid Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. under the Contract. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will not indemnify the State if the State alters the Contracted Resources without Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. consent or uses it outside the scope of use identified in Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. User Documentation or if the State uses a version of the Contracted Resources which has been superseded, if the infringement claim could have been avoided by using an unaltered current version of the Contracted Resources which was provided to the State at no additional cost. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will not indemnify the State to the extent that an infringement claim is based upon any information design, Specification, instruction, Software, Data, or material not furnished by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will not indemnify the State to the extent that an infringement claim is based upon the combination of any Contracted Resources with any products or Services not provided by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. without Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. consent.

8. CONTROL OF ALL COMPONENT ELEMENTS

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. acknowledges and agrees that it is responsible for maintaining all Licenses or permissions to use any third-party Software, equipment, or Services that are component parts of any Deliverable provided under this Agreement for the entire Term of the Contract. Nothing within this provision shall be construed to require Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to maintain Licenses and permissions for Software acquired by the State directly or through third-parties which may be integrated with Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Deliverables.

9. CUSTOM SOURCE CODE

Should any custom source code be developed, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall provide the State with a copy of the source code, which shall be subject to the License rights. The State shall receive a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive paid –up right and license to use, copy, modify and prepare derivative works of any custom developed software.

10. SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall maintain and support the system in all material respects as described in the applicable program Documentation after delivery and the Warranty Period of ninety (90) days through the completion of the Contract term and support transition activities through the end of term based on approved transition plan.

Page 53 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation **Bureau of Turnpikes**

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT D - SOFTWARE AGREEMENT Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will not be responsible for maintenance or support

for Software developed or modified by the State.

MAINTENANCE RELEASES 11.

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall make available to the State the latest program updates, general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases, patches, and Documentation that are generally offered to its customers, at no additional cost.

12. SOFTWARE ESCROW

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will enter into a source and configuration code escrow Agreement, with a State approved escrow agent. The escrow Agreement requires Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to put the Vendor Software source and configuration code in escrow including all build environment, configuration tools, API's and documentation required to successfully verify and build from Escrow. The source code should be kept current with quarterly update. In case of major updates, escrow should be updated within a month of deployment and stabilization of the code. The source code shall be released to the State if one of the following events has occurred:

- a. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. has made an assignment for the benefit of creditors;
- b. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. institutes or becomes subject to a liquidation or bankruptcy proceeding of any kind;
- c. A receiver or similar officer has been appointed to take charge of all or part of the Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. assets;
- d. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. or its Subcontractor terminates its maintenance and operations support Services for the State for the Software or has ceased supporting and maintaining the Software for the State, whether due to its ceasing to conduct business generally or otherwise, except in cases where the termination or cessation is a result of the non-payment or other fault of the State; or
- Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. ceases its on-going business operations or that portion of its business operations relating to the licensing and maintenance of the Software.

Upon the occurrence of a Release Event, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. hereby grants the State the right to use, copy, modify, display, distribute, and prepare derivative works of the source code, and to authorize others to do the same on behalf of the State (Contractors, agents, etc.), solely for the purpose of completing the performance of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. obligations under the Contract, including, but not limited to, providing maintenance and support for the Software and subject to the rights granted in this Contract.

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 54 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

EXHIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

1. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Prior to the filing of any formal proceedings with respect to a dispute (other than an action seeking injunctive relief with respect to intellectual property rights or Confidential Information), the Party believing itself aggrieved (the "Invoking Party") shall call for progressive management involvement in the dispute negotiation by written notice to the other Party. Such notice shall be without prejudice to the Invoking Party's right to any other remedy permitted under the Contract.

The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to arrange personal meetings and/or telephone conferences as needed, at mutually convenient times and places, between negotiators for the Parties at the following successive management levels, each of which shall have a period of allotted time as specified below in which to attempt to resolve the dispute:

Table E-1.		The second secon	
DISPUTE RESOLUTION RESPONSIBILITY AND SCHEDULE TABLE			
LEVEL	CONTRACTOR POINT OF CONTACT	STATE POINT OF CONTACT	CUMULATIVE ALLOTTED TIME
Primary	Francis Farrell Sr Project Manager	Renee Dupuis Turnpike Assistant Administrator	Five (5) Business Days
First	Aime Grubb Project Principle	John Corcoran Turnpike Administrator	Ten (10) Business Days
Second	Scott Doering Vice President and General Manager	Victoria Sheehan DOT Commissioner	Fifteen (15) Business Days

The allotted time for the first level negotiations shall begin on the date the Invoking Party's notice is received by the other Party. Subsequent allotted time is days from the date that the original Invoking Party's notice is received by the other Party.

2. ACCESS AND COOPERATION

Subject to the terms of this Agreement and applicable laws, regulations, and policies, the State will provide Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. with access to all program files, libraries, personal computer-based Systems, Software packages, Network Systems, security Systems, and hardware as required to complete the contracted Services.

Page 55 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

3. RECORD RETENTION

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and its Subcontractors shall maintain all Project records including but not limited to books, records, documents, and other evidence of accounting procedures and practices, which properly and sufficiently reflect all direct and indirect costs invoiced in the performance of their respective obligations under the Contract. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and its Subcontractors shall retain all such records for three (3) years following termination of the Contract, including any extensions. Records relating to any litigation matters regarding the Contract shall be kept for one (1) year following the termination of all litigation, including the termination of all appeals or the expiration of the appeal period.

Upon prior notice and subject to reasonable time frames, all such records shall be subject to inspection, examination, audit and copying by personnel so authorized by the State and federal officials so authorized by law, rule, regulation or Contract, as applicable. Access to these items shall be provided within Merrimack County of the State of New Hampshire, unless otherwise agreed by the State. Delivery of and access to such records shall be at no cost to the State during the three (3) year period following termination of the Contract and one (1) year Term following litigation relating to the Contract, including all appeals or the expiration of the appeal period. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall include the record retention and Review requirements of this section in any of its subcontracts.

4. ACCOUNTING

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall maintain an accounting System in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The costs applicable to the Contract shall be ascertainable from the accounting System.

5. AUDIT

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. shall allow the State to audit conformance to the contract terms. The State may perform this audit or contract with a third party at its discretion and at the State's expense.

6. MISCELLANEOUS WORK REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Access to State Systems

In consideration for receiving access to and use of the computer facilities, network, licensed or developed software, software maintained or operated by any of the State entities, systems, equipment, Documentation, information, reports, or data of any kind (hereinafter "Information"), Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. understands and agrees to the following rules:

6.1.1. Computer Use

Page 56 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:

Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

- a. Every Authorized User has the responsibility to assure the protection of information from unauthorized access, misuse, theft, damage, destruction, modification, or disclosure.
- b. That information shall be used solely for conducting official State business, and all other use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited to, personal, or other private and non-State use and that at no time shall Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. access or attempt to access any information without having the express authority to do so.
- c. That at no time shall Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. access or attempt to access any information in a manner inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and /or agreements relating to system entry/access.
- d. That all software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by the State cannot be copied, shared, distributed, sub-licensed, modified, reverse engineered, rented, or sold, and that at all times Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. must use utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the license or any other agreement executed by the State. Only equipment or software owned, licensed, or being evaluated by the State, can be used by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Personal software (including but not limited to palmtop sync software) shall not be installed on any equipment.
- e. That if Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is found to be in violation of any of the above-stated rules, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. may face default and termination under the Agreement and the individual may face removal from the State Contract, and/or criminal or civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.
- f. That computer use shall follow the State standard policy (Statewide Computer Use Policy is available upon request)

6.1.2. Email Use

Email and other electronic communication messaging systems are State of New Hampshire property and are to be used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal email systems" or "State-funded email systems." Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. understands and agrees that use of email shall follow State standard policy (Statewide Computer Use Policy is available upon request).

6.1.3. Internet/Intranet Use

The Internet/Intranet is to be used for access to and distribution of information in direct support of the business of the State of New Hampshire according to State standard policy (Statewide Computer Use Policy is available upon request).

6.2 State Website Copyright

All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including copyright to all Data and information, shall remain with the State. The State shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the WWW

Page 57 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes 2019-085 – Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT E – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or information shall, where applicable, display the State's copyright.

6.3 Workplace Hours

Unless otherwise agreed to by the State, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. personnel shall work forty (40) hour weeks between the hours of 8 am and 5 pm (Eastern Time), excluding State of New Hampshire holidays. Changes to this Schedule may be made upon agreement with the State Project Manager.

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 58 of 73 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



Department of Transportation **Bureau** of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

EXHIBIT F - TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

The following general contracting terms and definitions apply except as specifically noted elsewhere in this Contract.

TERM	DEFINITION
Acceptance	Notice from the State that a Deliverable has satisfied Acceptance Test or Review.
Acceptance Letter	An Acceptance Letter provides notice form the State that a Deliverable has satisfied Acceptance Tests or Review.
Acceptance Period The timeframe during which the Acceptance Test is performed.	Acceptance Period The timeframe during which the Acceptance Test is performed.
Agreement	A Contract duly executed and legally binding.
Acceptance Test Plan	The Acceptance Test Plan provided by the Vendor and agreed to by the State that describes at a minimum, the specific Acceptance process, criteria, and Schedule for Deliverables.
Acceptance Test and Review	Tests performed to determine that no Defects exist in the application Software or the System.
Access Control	Supports the management of permissions for logging onto a computer or network.
Agency	"Agency" shall mean the Bureau or Department, both as defined herein.
Agency Representative	In the context of RFP 2019-085 Appendix C: System Requirements and Deliverables the Bureau's designated representative. Also referred to as "Agency's Designated Representative".
Agreement	A Contract duly executed and legally binding.
Apparent Violation	Transactions created in the lane at the time of vehicle passage through the lane where a valid Transponder read was not obtained from the vehicle.
Appendix	Supplementary material that is collected and appended at the back of a document.
Approve	"Approve" and its variations (e.g., "Approval") when capitalized in this Contract refer to the Agency's Acceptance of a Document, condition, action or Deliverable in writing for its own internal purposes. The Agency's Approval shall not be construed to mean the State's endorsement or assumption of liability, nor shall it relieve the Contractor of its responsibilities under the Contract.

Page 59 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Solutions of the Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

As-Built Drawings	Documents and other items set forth in RFP 2019-085 Appendix C: System Requirements and Deliverables, that constitute a complete and accurate record of the System as designed, delivered, installed Approved and Accepted.
Audit Trail Capture and Analysis	Supports the identification and monitoring of activities within an application or system.
Automatic Vehicle Detection System (AVDC)	A system for automatic vehicle detection, separation, and classification of vehicles.
Automatic Vehicle Identification (AVI)	A system consisting of RF antenna(s) and reader equipment installed in a toll lane, that meets E-ZPass and IAG requirements, and a compatible transponder mounted on a vehicle for automatic identification of the Transponder account as it passes through the lane.
Authorized User	The Vendor's employees, Contractors, Subcontractors or other agents who need to access the State's Personal Data to enable the Contractor to perform the Services required.
Best and Final Offer (BAFO)	For negotiated procurements, a Vendor's final offer following the conclusion of discussions.
Breach or Breach of Security	Unlawful and unauthorized acquisition of unencrypted computerized Data that materially compromises the security, confidentiality or integrity of personal information maintained by a person or commercial entity.
Buffered Transponder Read	Transponder reads that are retained in the AVI reader when communications between the reader and the toll lane controller are down. These reads are not transmitted to the toll lane controller at the time of the Transponder read. Upon reestablishing communications such Transponder reads are transmitted to the toll lane controller and are called Buffered Transponder Reads.
Bureau	New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT), Bureau of Turnpikes, 36 Hackett Hill Road, Hooksett NH 03106
Business Day	The 24-hour toll collection day expressed from 00:00 AM to 24:00 AM in military time.
Business Hours	Vendor personnel shall work normal business hours between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. EST, eight (8) hour days, forty (40) hour weeks, excluding State of New Hampshire holidays. Changes to this Schedule may be made upon agreement with the State Project Manager.



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Business Rules CCP	A set of rules proposed by the Contractor and Approved by the Agency that defines how the Toll Collection System shall respond to various situations that occur during the toll collection process, based on business case and policy decisions made by the Agency, as the same may be amended from time to time by written agreement of the Agency and the Contractor. Change Control Procedures
CM	Configuration Management
Certification	The Vendor's written declaration with full supporting and written Documentation (including without limitation test results as applicable) that the Vendor has completed development of the Deliverable and certified its readiness for applicable Acceptance Testing or Review.
Change Control	Formal process for initiating changes to the proposed Solution or process once development has begun.
Change Order	Formal Documentation prepared for a proposed change in the Specifications.
Commissioning	The test that occurs upon completion and Approval of installation that indicates readiness for operations. Live operations shall not occur without the Approval of Commissioning. Upon such Approval, the Project shall be considered Commissioned.
Completion Date	End date for the Contract. (See Contract Agreement, P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7)
Confidential Information	Information required to be kept Confidential from unauthorized disclosure <i>under the Contract</i> .
Contract	An Agreement between the State of New Hampshire and a Vendor, which creates binding obligations for each party to perform as specified in the Contract Documents.
Contract Agreement	Part 1, 2, and 3. The Documentation consisting of the P-37 General Provisions, IT Provisions, and the Exhibits which represents the understanding and acceptance of the reciprocal legal rights and duties of the parties with respect to the Scope of Work.
Contract Conclusion	Refers to the conclusion of the Contract, for any reason, including but not limited to, the successful Contract completion, termination for convenience, or termination for default.
Contract Documents	Documents that comprise this Contract.
Contract Managers	The persons identified by the State and the Vendor who shall be responsible for all Contractual authorization and administration of the Contract. These responsibilities shall

Page 61 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

	include but not be limited to processing Contract Documentation, obtaining executive approvals, tracking costs and payments, and representing the parties in all Contract administrative activities.
Contract Price	The total, not to exceed amount to be paid by the State to the Contractor for product and Services described in the Contract Agreement. This amount is listed in Part 1, P-37 General Provisions – Section 1.8: Price Limitation, as well as Part 3, Exhibit B – Paragraph 2: Contract Price.
Contractor	The Contractor and its employees, subcontractors, agents and affiliates who are providing the Services agreed to under the Contract.
Contracted Vendor/Vendor	The Vendor whose Proposal or quote was awarded the Contract with the State and who is responsible for the Services and Deliverables of the Contract.
Conversion/Migration Validation Test	A test to ensure that a Data conversion process correctly takes Data from a legacy system and successfully converts it to form that can be used by the new system.
COTS	Commercial Off the Shelf Software.
CR	Change Request
Cure Period	The thirty (30) day period following written notification of a default within which a Contracted Vendor must cure the default identified.
Custom Code	Code developed by the Vendor specifically for this Project for the State of New Hampshire.
Custom Software	Software developed by the Vendor specifically for this Project for the State of New Hampshire.
Customized Hardware	The toll collection hardware provided by the System Integrator for the Toll Collection System that is designed and certified by the System Integrator.
Data	State's records, files, forms, Data and other documents or information, in either electronic or paper form, that will be used /converted by the Vendor during the Contract Term.
Data Breach	Data Breach means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, "Data Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

Page 62 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: State: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

DBA	Database Administrator
Deliverable	A Deliverable is any Written, Software, or Non-Software Deliverable (letter, report, manual, book, code, or other), provided by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. to the State or under the terms of a Contract requirement.
Department	An agency of the State
Department of Information Technology (DoIT)	The Department of Information Technology established under RSA chapter 21-R by the Legislature effective September 5, 2008.
Developer/Operator	The contracted individual, firm, or company that will perform the duties and Specifications of the contract. (See Vendor)
Digital Signature	Certification that guarantees the unaltered state of a file, also known as "code signing".
Digital Video Audit System (DVAS)	System with cameras located at a tolling location that permits remote viewing of vehicular events and images in real time or stored for review. System provides transaction event data overlaid on video for correlation of vehicle and transaction data as defined in this document.
Documentation	All information that describes the installation, operation, and use of the Software, either in printed or electronic format.
Effective Date	The Contract and all obligations of the parties hereunder shall become effective on the date the Governor and the Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire approves the Contract.
Electronic Toll Collection (ETC)	A system of integrated devices and components that permit the automatic recording of vehicle transactions through electronic media in a toll revenue collection system.

Page 63 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Encryption	Supports the transformation of Data for security purposes.
ЕОМ	End of Month
Enhancements	Updates, additions, modifications to, and new releases for the Software, and all changes to the Documentation as a result of Enhancements, including, but not limited to, Enhancements produced by Change Orders.
Existing Central Host	Shall mean the existing Bureau of Turnpikes toll host server system. Also referred to as "Existing Host" or "Existing Central Host System".
Existing System Integrator	Shall mean the existing Bureau of Turnpikes toll system integrator, currently Conduent. Also referred to as the Existing Toll System Contractor.
Event of Default	Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of a Vendor shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder ("Event of Default"): a. Failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on Schedule; b. Failure to submit any report required; and/or Failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of the Contract.
Extended Operations Test	A ninety (90) day Operational Test shall be conducted by the Contractor starting at a date as directed by the NHDOT, after opening to traffic. Beginning with that date, the System shall be observed in live operations by the Contractor and the NHDOT for a minimum of two (2) months to cover a monthly audit cycle.
Factory Acceptance Test	The testing performed by the Contractor to prove the functionality of the system in accordance with RFP 2019-085 Appendix C: System Requirements and Deliverables.
Final System Acceptance	Final System Acceptance will be considered by the State to have occurred when, the State in its sole discretion, determines that Contractor has complied with all of the completion requirements set forth for the Project in this Agreement.
Firm Fixed Price Contract	A Firm Fixed Price Contract provides a price that is not subject to increase, i.e., adjustment on the basis of the Vendor's cost experience in performing the Contract.

Page 64 of 73
Conduct State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Fully Loaded	Rates are inclusive of all allowable expenses, including, but not limited to: meals, hotel/housing, airfare, car rentals, car mileage, and out of pocket expenses.
GAAP	Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Governor and Executive Council	The New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.
GUI	Graphical user interface.
Harvest	Software to archive and/or control versions of Software.
Hosted Services	Applications, IT infrastructure components or functions that organizations access from external service providers, typically through an internet connection.
Hosted System	The combination of hardware, software and networking components used by the Application Service Provider to deliver the Hosted Services.
Identification and Authentication	Supports obtaining information about those parties attempting to log on to a system or application for security purposes and the validation of those users.
Image Toll (IToll)	A transaction that is an apparent violation at the time it was created at the lane level, but upon the violation image processing a valid ETC account with a matching license plate is found and the violation is subsequently converted to a toll transaction, posted to the customer's account. The process for making the System fully Operational for
Implementation	processing the Data.
Implementation Plan	Sets forth the transition from development of the System to full operation, and includes without limitation, training, business and technical procedures.
Information Technology (IT)	Refers to the tools and processes used for the gathering, storing, manipulating, transmitting, sharing, and sensing of information including, but not limited to, Data processing, computing, information systems, telecommunications, and various audio and video technologies.

Page 65 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Input Validation	Ensure that the value entered by users or provided by other applications meets the size, type and format expected. Protecting the application from cross site scripting, SQL injection, buffer overflow, etc.
Intrusion Detection	Supports the detection of illegal entrance into a computer system.
Invoking Party	In a dispute, the party believing itself aggrieved.
Key Project Staff	Personnel identified by the State and by the Contracted Vendor as essential to work on the Project.
Licensee	The State of New Hampshire
Maintenance On-line Management System (MOMS)	An automated, fully integrated system that monitors the status of operational equipment in real time, records equipment and process failures, notifies Maintenance personnel, generates and tracks orders, maintain preventative Maintenance schedules, generated repair history, and maintains parts inventory and asset management as set forth in the RFP 2019-085 Appendix C: System Requirements and Deliverables.
NIST	National Institute of Science and Technology
Non-Exclusive Contract	A Contract executed by the State that does not restrict the State from seeking alternative sources for the Deliverables or Services provided under the Contract.
Non-Public Information	Information, other than Personal Information, that is not subject to distribution to the public as public information. It is deemed to be sensitive and confidential by the State because it contains information that is exempt by statute, ordinance or administrative rule from access by the general public as public information.
Notice to Proceed (NTP)	The State Contract Manager's written direction to the Vendor to begin work on the Contract on a given date and time.
OCR	Optical character recognition software used to automatically extract characters and/or numbers from an image of the data.
Open Data Formats	A Data format based on an underlying Open Standard.
ORT/AET Host Central Processing System	The back office central computer systems that process the transactions from the ORT/AET controllers, and interfaces to the IAG CSC/VPC or to the Existing Central Host

Page 66 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

	(dependent upon option selected by the Agency) to post the transactions for further customer and violations processing.
Open Source Software	Software that guarantees the user unrestricted use of the Software as defined in RSA chapter 21-R:10 and RSA chapter 21-R:11.
Open Standards	Specifications for the encoding and transfer of computer Data that is defined in RSA chapter 21-R:10 and RSA chapter 21-R:13.
Operating System	System is fully functional, all Data has been loaded into the System, is available for use by the State in its daily operations.
Operational	Operational means that the System is operating and fully functional, all Data has been loaded; the System is available for use by the State in its daily operations, and the State has issued an Acceptance Letter.
Order of Precedence	The order in which Contract/Documents control in the event of a conflict or ambiguity. A term or condition in a document control over a conflicting or ambiguous term or condition in a document that is lower in the Order of Precedence.
Personal Data	Data that includes information relating to a person that identifies the person by name and has any of the following Personally Identifiable Information (PII): government-issued identification numbers (e.g., Social Security, driver's license, passport); financial account information, including account number, credit or debit card numbers; or Protected Health Information (PHI) relating to a person.
Project	The planned undertaking regarding the entire subject matter of an RFP and Contract and the activities of the parties related hereto.
Project Team	The group of State employees and Contracted Vendor's personnel responsible for managing the processes and mechanisms required such that the Services are procured in accordance with the Work Plan on time, on budget and to the required Specifications and quality.
Project Management Plan	A document that describes the processes and methodology to be employed by the Vendor to ensure a successful project.

Page 67 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Project Managers	The persons identified who shall function as the State's and the Vendor's representative with regard to Review and Acceptance of Contract Deliverables, invoice sign off, and Review and approval of Change Requests (CR) utilizing the Change Control Procedures (CCP).
Project Staff	State personnel assigned to work with the Vendor on the Project.
Proposer	Any individual, firm, or corporation who has submitted a Proposal on the Project and who has met the minimum requirements established by the Agency for Proposal evaluation. Also referred to as "Vendor".
Proposal	The submission from a Vendor in response to the Request for a Proposal or Statement of Work.
ROI	Region of Interest for the license plate images focusing on the license plate details.
Regression Test Plan	A plan integrated into the Work Plan used to ascertain whether fixes to Defects have caused errors elsewhere in the application/process.
Review	The process of Reviewing Deliverables for Acceptance.
Review Period	The period set for Review of a Deliverable. If none is specified, then the Review Period is five (5) business days.
RFP (Request for Proposal)	A Request For Proposal solicits Proposals to satisfy State functional requirements by supplying Data processing product and/or Service resources according to specific terms and conditions.
Role/Privilege Management	Supports the granting of abilities to users or groups of users of a computer, application or network.
Schedule	The dates described in the Work Plan for deadlines for performance of Services and other Project events and activities under the Contract.
Security Incident	"Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.
Service Level Agreement (SLA)	A signed agreement between the Vendor and the State specifying the level of Service that is expected of, and provided by, the Vendor during the term of the Contract.
Services	The work or labor to be performed by the Vendor on the Project as described in the Contract.

Page 68 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Software	All Custom, SAAS and COTS computer programs and applications provided by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. under the Contract.
Software Deliverables	All Custom, SAAS and COTS Software and Enhancements.
Software License	Licenses provided to the State under this Contract.
Software-as-a-Service (SaaS)	The capability provided to the State to use Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. applications running on a cloud infrastructure. The applications are accessible from various client devices through a thin-client interface such as a Web browser (e.g., Web-based email) or a program interface. The State does not manage or control the underlying cloud infrastructure including network, servers, Operating Systems, storage or even individual application capabilities, with the possible exception of limited user-specific application configuration settings.
Solution	The Solution consists of the total Solution, which includes, without limitation, Software and Services, addressing the requirements and terms of the Specifications. The off-the-shelf Software and configured Software customized for the State provided by the Vendor in response to this RFP.
Specifications	Written details that set forth the requirements which include, without limitation, the RFP, the Proposal, the Contract, any performance standards, Documentation, applicable State and federal policies, laws and regulations, State technical standards, subsequent State-approved Deliverables, and other specifications and requirements described in the Contract Documents. The Specifications are, by this reference, made a part of the Contract as though completely set forth herein.
State	STATE is defined as: State of New Hampshire New Hampshire Department of Transportation Bureau of Turnpikes 36 Hackett Hill Road Hooksett NH 03106 Reference to the term "State" shall include applicable agencies.

Page 69 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 56
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Statement of Work (SOW)	A Statement of Work clearly defines the basic requirements and objectives of a Project. The Statement of Work also defines a high-level view of the architecture, performance and design requirements, the roles and responsibilities of the State and the Vendor. The Contract Agreement SOW defines the results that the Vendor remains responsible and accountable for achieving.
State's Confidential Records	State's information regardless of its form that is not subject to public disclosure under applicable state and federal laws and regulations, including but not limited to RSA chapter 91-A: Access to Governmental Records and Meetings.
State Data	All Data created or in any way originating with the State, and all Data that is the output of computer processing of or other electronic manipulation of any Data that was created by or in any way originated with the State, whether such Data or output is stored on the State's hardware, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. hardware or exists in any system owned, maintained or otherwise controlled by the State or by Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.
State Fiscal Year (SFY)	The New Hampshire State Fiscal Year (SFY) runs from July 1 of the preceding calendar year through June 30 of the applicable calendar year.
State Project Leader	State's representative with regard to Project oversight.
State's Project Manager (PM)	State's representative with regard to Project Management and technical matters. Agency Project Managers are responsible for Review and Acceptance of specific Contract Deliverables, invoice sign off, and Review and approval of a Change Request (CR).
Subcontractor	A person, partnership, or company not in the employment of, or owned by, Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. which is performing Services under this Contract under a separate Contract with or on behalf of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc.
System	All Software, specified hardware, interfaces and extensions, integrated and functioning together in accordance with the Specifications.
TBD	To Be Determined
Technical Authorization	Direction to a Vendor, which fills in details, clarifies, interprets, or specifies technical requirements. It must be:

Page 70 of 73 Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50Date: 3/5/22

Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

	 Consistent with Statement of Work within statement of Services; not constitute a new assignment; and not change the terms, documents of Specifications of the SOW. 					
Test Plan	A plan, integrated in the Work Plan, to verify the code (new or changed) works to fulfill the requirements of the Project. It may consist of a timeline, a series of tests and test Data, test scripts and reports for the test results as well as a tracking mechanism.					
Term	Period of the Contract from the Effective Date through the Completion Date identified in the P-37 General Provisions or termination.					
Transition Services	Services and support provided when the Contracted Vendor is supporting system changes.					
UAT	User Acceptance Test.					
Unit Test	Developers create their own test Data and test scenarios to verify the code they have created or changed functions properly as defined.					
User Acceptance Testing (UAT)	Tests done by knowledgeable business users who are familiar with the scope of the Project. They create/develop test cases to confirm the System was developed according to specific user requirements. The test cases and scripts/scenarios should be mapped to business requirements outlined in the user requirements documents.					
User Management	Supports the administration of computer, application and network accounts within an organization.					
Vendor/ Contracted Vendor	The Vendor whose Proposal or quote was awarded the Contract with the State and who is responsible for the Services and Deliverables of the Contract.					
Verification	Supports the confirmation of authority to enter a computer system application or network.					
Virtual Private Network (VPN)	Extends a private network across a public network, and enables users to send and receive Data across shared or public networks as if their computing devices were directly connected to the private network					
Violation Enforcement System (VES)	Video based system located at toll lanes used to record license plate images of selected vehicles (to be defined in the Business Rules) in video form in accordance with this Document.					

Page 71 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: 50
Date: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT F – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

Walk Through	A step-by-step review of a specification, usability features or design before it is handed off to the technical team for development
Warranty	The conditions under, and period during, which Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. will repair, replace, or other compensate for, the defective item without cost to the buyer or user. It also delineates the rights and obligations of both parties in case of a claim or dispute.
Warranty Period	A period of coverage during which Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. is responsible for providing a guarantee for products and Services delivered as defined in the Contract.
Warranty Releases	Code releases that are done during the Warranty Period.
Warranty Services	The Services to be provided by the Vendor during the Warranty Period.
Warranty Work	The Work to be provided during the Warranty Period under the terms of the Warranty as set forth in the Contract Documents.
Work	The term Work, as used herein, includes all work which, in the judgment of the State, is necessary for completion of the construction and the Project under the Contract Documents and includes, without limitation, all plant, labor, materials, equipment, systems, services and software and other facilities, installation, testing, operations and maintenance and other things necessary or proper for or incidental to the carrying out and completion of the terms of the Contract Documents. Furthermore, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Work includes and is the result of performing or furnishing Design professional services and construction and installed equipment required by the
Written Deliverables	Contract Documents. Non-Software written Deliverable Documentation (letter, report, manual, book, other) provided by the Vendor either in paper or electronic format.

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 72 of 73
Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials: State: 3/5/22



Department of Transportation

Bureau of Turnpikes

2019-085 - Toll Collection System

EXHIBIT G – ATTACHMENTS AND CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATES

EXHIBIT G – ATTACHMENTS AND CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC. CERTIFICATES

1. ATTACHMENTS

- a. NH Department of Transportation RFP 2019-085 Toll Collection System dated March 1, 2021, with Addendum #1, dated May 3, 2021, with Addendum #2, dated May 18, 2021, and Responses to State's Questions RFP 2019-085, dated October 29, 2021 are included by reference as binding Deliverables to this Contract.
- **b.** Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Proposal to Department of Transportation RFP 2019-085 dated June 23, 2021 is hereby incorporated by reference as fully set forth herein.
- c. Change Request Work Instruction

2. CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC. CERTIFICATES

- a. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Certificate of Good Standing
- b. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Certificate of Vote/Authority
- c. Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Certificate of Insurance

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 73 of 73

Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. Initials:



State of New Hampshire Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC. is a New York Profit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 28, 1991. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 152777

Certificate Number: 0005668800



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, this 14th day of February A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY

I, Paul R. Webber IV, in my capacity as Assistant Secretary of Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Company"), am delivering this Certificate of Assistant Secretary to certify that Scott Doering is the duly elected, qualified and acting Vice President of the Company and in such capacity is authorized to obligate, bind, and execute any and all proposals, contracts as well as any amendments thereto in connection with the Bureau of Turnpikes Toll Collection System RFP #2019-085, by and between Conduent State & Local Solutions, Inc. and the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, and all other documents to be executed therewith.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand to this Certificate of Assistant Secretary as of the Shay of March, 2022.

CONDUENT STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS, INC. a New York Corporation

Paul R. Webber IV, Assistant Secretary

SEAL:



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 03/01/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES LEUW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

ARSH USE, NO. BY CORK, NY 10036 ADDRESS. Lauren Gillegrande@math.com MSURER 3. ACE American insurance Company NA. MSURER 3. NA. MSURER 6. Inc. MSURER 6. Inc. MSURER 7. NA. MSUR	PRODUC	CER			CONTACT NAME:	Lauren	Giangrande, Ser	nior Vice President		
EWYORK NY 10036	PRODUCER MARSH USA, INC.					PHONE 242.24E.0900 FAX				
Int. ACS. CertRequesi@marsh.com					E-MAIL					
INSURER 8: ACE American insurance Company 22667 INSURER 9: INA NN N	Attn:	ACS.CertRequest@marsh.com			AUDITES		URER(S) AFFOR	DING COVERAGE		NAIC#
NSURER 8 : N/A NATURE 9 : N/A NATU					INCLIDED		and the same of th			201 V M. 100 V. V. OKONO V. V. OKONO V. V. OKONO V.
ASST Asstant ASST	Neune	*			40-4-4		Cest in condition of	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		N/A
RESIDENCE INSERTING SINCE OF INS	Cond	duent State & Local Solutions, Inc					ns Co Of North A	marica		43575
NSURER F: NSURER							***************************************			
VERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-009975221-34 REVISION NUMBER: 39 HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD (DICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SETTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERFAIR. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES CRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SECTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THE TERMS. ACLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. TYPE OF INSURANCE INSURANCE INSURANCE INSURANCE INSURANCE PROBLET SCRIBED IN SUBJECT TO WHICH THE TERMS. POLICY PROBLEMS SECRIFICATION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THE TERMS. ACLUSIONS AND CONTRACT OR OTHER TO WHICH THE TERMS. COLUMENT OF THE POLICIES CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THIS SUBJECT TO WHICH THE TERMS. PROBLET AND THE POLICIES OF THE POLICIES OF THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THIS SUBJECT TO WHICH THE TERMS. ACLUSIONS AND CONTRACT OR OTHER TO WHICH THE TERMS. POLICY PROBLEMS SERVE ACCOUNTED SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) (ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) ACCOUNTED TO WHICH THE POLICIES SECRIFICATION OF OPERATIONS (VEHICLE S) (ACCOUNTED TO	Dana	10, 17 10204					riderwiners ins. c	<i>J</i> 0,		
HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PULICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD DIOCATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS SETTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED TO MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIPTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIBITITY SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDLISVE POLICY NUMBER POLICY										1
HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED MANED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD DICATED. NOTWITH THAT THE POLICY PERIOD OF THE POLICY PERIOD DICATED. TO ALL THE TERMS, AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAMIS. X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X ANY AUTO OTHERS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X ANY AUTO OTHERS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X ANY AUTO OWNED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY WIRCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE WIRCESS LIAB WIRCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE WIRCESS LIAB WIRCESS			TICIOATO	NUMBED:	-			PEVISION NUMBER: 30	1	<u> </u>
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR CLAIMS-MADE	THIS	S IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES ICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE	QUIREMEI PERTAIN. POLICIES.	NT, TERM OR CONDITION THE INSURANCE AFFORD LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	OF ANY DED BY TO BEEN RE	CONTRACT HE POLICIE DUCED BY	OR OTHER I S DESCRIBEI PAID CLAIMS.	DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO D HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO	1 10	WHICH IHIS
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR CLAIMS-MADE	ISR TR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADDL SUBR	POLICY NUMBER		POLICY EFF MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMIT	S	
CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR PREMISES [Ea ecquirence) S 2,000,0			1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	*					\$	2,000,000
MED EXP (Any one person) S	1	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				\$	2,000,000
GENTL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE \$ 10,000,0	process of	to the second second						MED EXP (Any one person)	\$	N/A
GERTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$ 4,000,0 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT \$ 2,000,0 C					***************************************			PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	5	2,000,000
X POLICY JECT LOC OTHER: AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X ANY AUTO OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONL	6	SENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER			D.D.D.D.A.			GENERAL AGGREGATE	s	10,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X ANY AUTO OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONL	\$	X POLICY PRO LOC	And the second					PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG		4,000,00
X ANY AUTO OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED NON-OWNED SECRET SECONDERS NON-OWNED NON-OWNED SECRET	-		-	ISAH25551886	0	1/01/2022	01/01/2023		\$	2,000,00
OWNED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY HIRED NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY	ļ.,,,,,,	meng .							\$	
AUTOS ONLY HIRED NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	^							BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	S	
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE DED RETENTION \$ WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICIER/MEMBEREXCLUDED7 (Mandatory in NH) If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) EACH OCCURRENCE \$ EACH OCCURRENCE \$ AGGREGATE \$ V PER OTH- EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,0 1/01/2022 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,0 ELL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$ 1,000,0		AUTOS ONLY AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE	-	
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE DED RETENTIONS WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N N/A N/A SCFC68921995 (WI) WLRC68921958 (AOS) WLRC68921910 (AZ, CA, MA) O1/01/2022 O1/01/2023 O1/01/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,0 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,0 E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$								(Fur acadent)	\$	
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE DED RETENTIONS WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N N/A N/A SCFC68921995 (WI) WLRC68921958 (AOS) WLRC68921910 (AZ, CA, MA) O1/01/2022 O1/01/2023 O1/01/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,0 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,0 E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$	_							EACH OCCUPPENCE	¢	
DED RETENTIONS WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY AND PROPRIETOR PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N N/A SCFC68921995 (WI) WLRC68921910 (AZ, CA, MA) 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,0 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,0 01/01/2023 E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$ 1	ļ	00001		Address of the Control of the Contro					ad an include	***************************************
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPRIETOR PARTICEXECUTIVE (Mandatory in NH) If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) WIRC68921958 (AOS) WIRC68921958 (AOS) WIRC68921958 (AOS) WIRC68921958 (AOS) WIRC68921958 (AOS) O1/01/2022 O1/01/2023 X PER OTH- STATUTE OTH- EL. FACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,000 EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,000 EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$ 1,000,000 AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPRIETOR PARTICES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)	-			distributed the				AGGREGATE		
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory In NH) If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) WURC668921910 (AZ, CA, MA) 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 01/01/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000,000,000,0	C w		-	WLRC68921958 (AOS)		1/01/2022	01/01/2023	X PER OTH-	-	
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH) If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)	. A	ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VIN					01/01/2023		E.	1,000,00
[Mandatory in NH) [If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$ 1,000,0 \$ 1,000,0 **SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)	D O	NYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N	N/A		A Verministe	1/01/2022	01/01/2023	The state of the s	COMMISSION OF	1,000,00
DÉSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)	(N	Mandatory in NH)		301 00092 1993 (111)	-	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			,	1,000,00
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)	DI	ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					<u> </u>	E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	3	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / ECHICLES (ACCIDITION AS A CONTINUE		NOTION OF OBERATIONS IL OCATIONS IVENIO	LES (ACOPI	101 Additional Remarks Sched	lule, may be	attached If mo	re space is regul	red)		
Contract with the State of New Hampshire DOT – Toll Collection System – Contract # 2012-060. te of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation, is named as additional insured under the contractual provision on the above general liability policy.	DESCRI Re: Con	Mandatory In NH) yes, describe under yes, cescribe under yes, cescribe under yes, cescribe under yes, describe under yes, describent of the properties of th	Collection Sy	D 101, Additional Remarks Sched	lule, may be	attached If mo		E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$	
	CERT	TIFICATE HOLDER			CANC	ELLATION	ı			
RATIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION	The Depa	State of New Hampshire partment of Transportation r: John O. Morton Building			SHOUTHE	JLD ANY OF	THE ABOVE I	HEREOF, NOTICE WILL	ANCE BE	ELLED BEFORE DELIVERED IN
ERTIFICATE HOLDER The State of New Hampshire Department of Transportation Attn: John O. Morton Building Thazen Drive CANCELLATION SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.		STREET, ST. 1 T. T. T. T.								

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Marsh USA Inc.



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 12/28/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES ELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

	SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject is certificate does not confer rights to			uch end	orsement(s				
PRO	DUCER MARCHUCA INC			CONTACT Lauren Giangrande, Senior Vice President					
	MARSH USA, INC. 1166 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS		4	PHONE (A/C. No.	Ext): 212 34	5 8869	FAX (A/C, No):		
	NEW YORK, NY 10036			E-MAIL ADDRES	s: Lauren	.Giangrande@ma			
	Attn: ACS.CertRequest@marsh.com		ш	.3.300,30.3.500.00		SURER(S) AFFOR	DING COVERAGE		NAIC#
				INSURE		can Insurance Co			22667
INSU	URED			INSURE				******************	N/A
	Conduent Incorporated					ns Co Of North A	morica		43575
	100 Campus Drive, Suite 200 Florham Park, NJ 07932				······································	Inderwriters Ins. (20702
						muerwiners ms. c	70.		
				INSURE				**************	
~~	VEDAGES CER	TICICA	TE NUMBER.	INSURE	009976661-45	,	REVISION NUMBER: 2	3	<u> </u>
	VERAGES CERT HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES		TE NUMBER:						ICY PERIOD
C E	NDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY F XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	QUIRE	MENT, TERM OR CONDITION N, THE INSURANCE AFFORDI ES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	OF ANY ED BY T BEEN R	CONTRACT THE POLICIE EDUCED BY	OR OTHER IS S DESCRIBED PAID CLAIMS.	OOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO	O ALL	WHICH THIS
NSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	INSD W	VD POLICY NUMBER			POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMIT	S	
Α	X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR		HDOG72493965	The state of the s	01/01/2022	01/01/2023	EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	\$ \$	2,000,000
	Samuel Sa			SUMMERS			MED EXP (Any one person)	s	N/A
				annoncean			PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	S	2,000,000
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER						GENERAL AGGREGATE	s	10,000,000
	V PRO-						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	S	4,000,000
								s	
	OTHER:				***************************************	 	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT	\$	
	ANY AUTO			1			(Ea accident) BODILY INJURY (Per person)	s	
	OWNED SCHEDULED						BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	10-200-00000	1957/1957
	AUTOS ONLY AUTOS NON-OWNED						PROPERTY DAMAGE	S	
	AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY						(Per accident)	\$	
	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE	\$	A2900
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE						AGGREGATE	\$	
6	DED RETENTION \$		WLRC68921958 (AOS)		01/01/2022	01/01/2023	y I PER OTH-	5	Control and
C	WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN		Antonia responsa responsa en de venas colores con escaciones	1	01/01/2022	01/01/2023	^ STATUTE ER		1 000 000
^	ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (****)	N/A	WLRC68921910 (AZ, CA, MA)	1		01/01/2023	E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	S	1,000,000
Đ	(Mandetory In NH) If yes, describe under	SCFC68921995 (WI)			01/01/2022	01/01/2023	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$	1,000,000
	DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$	1,000,000
Re: N	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICL WHIDT RFP #:2004-017 Customer Service Center. Of State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportatio ices, LLC and to the extent required by written contract	her name n is additi	ed insured: Xerox State & Local Solution	ns, Inc.				of Condu	enl Business
CE	RTIFICATE HOLDER			CANC	ELLATION				
The State of New Hampshire Department of Transportation Attn: John O. Morton Building 7 Hazen Drive				THE	EXPIRATIO	N DATE TH	DESCRIBED POLICIES BE C EREOF, NOTICE WILL CY PROVISIONS.		
	P.O. Box 483 Concord, NH 03302-0483			AUTHO	RIZED REPRESE	ENTATIVE			
	T.						Marsh USA	17.	ne.